Quality, the gate to the future for the Professional Accountants

« Quality is the core business of the accounting profession ». This motto is intrinsic to the image of the Professional
Accountants. At least in the general mindset of their clients and of the public authorities, when they are qualified at
the highest level in their country and when they are member of a recognized Institute. They are expected to comply
with the existing regulations, to apply the Code of Ethics, and to be fully independent. And in principle that is what
they do and what they are. But the question is not to say that they are so. The question is to be able to demonstrate
that everything has been done to ensure the best quality of service, first by the professional accountant
himself/herself, but also by his/her Institute. Every Accountancy body should have a program of Quality
Management to help its members. With respect to the audit activities, they are usually subject to oversight either by a
public authority or by the Institute. In the EU it is part of the audit regulation and directives and it is conducted within
the frame of specific standards. However, when it comes to Accounting services, which are not regulated in many
countries, quality is managed on a voluntary basis. It is a decision of the Institute to propose to its members a
program for enhancing Quality. It is important to approach Quality with a different mindset than for the Audit
activity. The purpose is not to look for the faults and to punish, but to provide good support to the Professional
Accountant and to advise him/her. With that mindset, Quality Management is well accepted, and the Professional
Accountant gets very interested in receiving the visit of a colleague. Of course, if there is a lack of quality, a roadmap
should be agreed between the Professional Accountant and his/her Institute with milestones for controlling the
evolution of the practice and the efforts made. And if Quality does not improve, the member may ultimately be
sanctioned by his/her Institute. This is part of the game in being member of a recognized institute, and it is in the
interest of the whole profession.
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FCM is delighted to deliver this survey which is the fruit of the experience shared between its members which have a
Quality management system on activities other than Auditing, hoping that it will help the ones which are not involved
in such a process for setting-up a new target.

Madrid, 21 November 2019

Philippe Arraou
FCM President
Board Member of IFAC
Past-President of CSOEC, the French Institute of CPA
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A Guide for the implementation of Quality Management
for Services other than Audit

The purpose of this Guide-drafted by Fédération des Experts-Comptables Méditerrannéens (FCM), is to
provide practical guidance to the institute of professional accountants that would like to set up a Quality
Management of their members for services other than audit.
In most countries, audit is subject to a public supervision and inspections are carried by an audit oversight
to control the quality of the audits performed. This is a case in all European Union Member States in line
with the statutory audit directive and regulation and it is also the case in many countries outside of the
European Union.
However, it is not often the case for many institutes to control the quality of the activity of their members
carrying services other than audit and especially accounting services.
FCM has conducted a brief survey of its member bodies to identify which of them have a system of Quality
Management for services other than audit and what are the characteristics of those systems. There are at
present four member institutes of FCM which have a system of Quality Management for services other than
audit i.e.
France : CSOEC
Portugal : OCC
Turkey : TURMOB
UK : ACCA.
Based on the findings of this survey and the characteristics of the various systems in place, the purpose of
this guide is to provide the member institutes of FCM with a sample of best practices together with practical
tools such as questionnaires to help them put in place a system of Quality Management of their members
for services other than audit, if they so wish.
It should be noted that as part of the fulfilment of their membership obligations as IFAC member bodies,
all the institutes must comply with SMO 1 on quality assurance which is first aimed at the Quality
Management of audits but for which the institutes are encouraged to extend the scope of their Quality
Management1 Thereby setting up a system of Quality Management for services other than audit also helps
the institutes fulfilling their obligations under the SMO 1.
Scope of Quality Assurance Review System

1
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15. In accordance with the applicability framework, a mandatory quality assurance review system shall be in
place for firms performing audits of financial statements. In jurisdictions where coverage of all audits of
financial statements (in accordance with paragraphs 34 through 41) creates an undue burden, priority shall
be given to statutory audits and audits of financial statements of public interest entities. Nevertheless, all
firms performing audits of financial statements shall be subject to the possibility of selection for quality
assurance review.[1]
16. Because the public places greater interest in audits of financial statements, it is appropriate for mandatory
quality assurance review systems to apply to at least those engagements. It is desirable, however, for the
largest range of professional services performed by professional accountants to be subject to quality
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In practical terms, there are two distinct approaches to a system of Quality Management set up by an
institute:
• The first is to rely on peers to control professional accountants. This is the case for example, in
France for the CSOEC, in Portugal for the OCC and in Turkey for the TURMOB
• The second is to rely on specialised staff of the institute as it is the case for ACCA in the UK.
This guide will provide guidance on the two approaches but with more emphasis on the approach based on
using peers since it seems to be the most commonly used around FCM members and probably, the most
suited for FCM members in view of their resources.
A second important challenge when setting a system of Quality Management for services other than audit is
for an institute to be able to control its entire membership under a reasonable periodicity or review cycle.
The SMO 1 sets a maximum review cycle of 3 years for firms auditing public interest entities and a
maximum cycle of 6 years for firms performing audits of non Public Interest Entities (PIEs). It is interesting
to note that SMO1 does not set a maximum review cycle for services other than audit. However one could
expect that review cycle cannot be unreasonable. This is a great challenge for member bodies which have a
high number of members whether individuals or firms.
The guide will be developed into four chapters and provide practical tools in the appendix.
SUMMARY:
I. THE OBJECTIVES OF THE QUALITY MANAGEMENT
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assurance review systems that are commensurate with the nature of the services. Therefore, parties
responsible for the quality assurance review system are encouraged to extend their scope to cover as many
professional services as possible, including, for example, other assurance engagements, preparation of
financial statements, or internal audit services.
17. Criteria, or risk factors, shall be established and published for evaluating all other engagements to determine
whether they shall be included in the scope of the system. Any engagements meeting these criteria shall be
included in the scope of the quality assurance review.
18. Criteria for extending the scope of engagements that will be subject to a quality assurance review include:
a. the number and range of stakeholders who may make decisions based on the engagement result;
b. the extent to which the subject matter and the engagement results are of public interest, or may affect
the public’s confidence in public institutions or public administration;
c. the identification of unusual circumstances or risks in an engagement or class of engagement; and
d. laws and regulations requiring inclusion of specific engagements in the scope of the quality
assurance review system.
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I.

THE OBJECTIVES OF THE QUALITY MANAGEMENT

There are two main high level objectives generally pursued by all the institutes which have set up a system
of Quality Management of their members for services other than audit i.e.
• to raise the quality of services offered by the profession
• to improve public perception of the quality of the services offered by the profession and hence, to
reinforce public trust in the profession.
There are also other benefits resulting from having a system of Quality Management of the services other
than audit, which are to:
• Harmonize behavior amongst professional accountants,
• Contribute to the efficient organisation of firms and to the improvement of working methods,
• Assess the proper application of ethical rules and professional standards by professional
accountants,
• Develop a sense of solidarity within the profession by helping practitioners or firms that could have
difficulty to keep pace with the changes in professional standards, working methods and the
organisational changes of the firms.
In essence all the institutes having set a system of Quality Management for their members providing
services other than audit pursue those aforementioned objectives, even though they can be described a bit
differently. The Portuguese institute (OCC) describes for example, the objective and basic principles of its
Quality Management system as aiming to:
• professional high-quality standards
• maintain and reinforce the public trust in the profession
• Ensure the professional reputation and good relationship with fellow members. avoid unfair
competition and disruptive professional behavior
The Turkish institute (Turmob) describes the objectives of its Quality Management system as follows:
• helping the accounting firm to operate in a safer, profitable, professional and corporate manner,
• helping the accounting firm to provide services in a corporate manner and in the public interest,
• increasing the professional reputation, and value of the services provided to stakeholders and to the
public,
• increasing client loyalty,
• protecting the client portfolio and thus increasing profitability,
• increasing employee satisfaction
• increasing productivity by making less mistakes and providing more performance,
• reducing wage problems,
• helping accounting firms better plan their future.
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The ACCA institute describes the objectives of its Quality Management as aiming to:
• enhance the quality and efficiency of the services firms provide to clients. This should help improve
profitability while protecting firms' reputations and the ACCA brand.
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The scheme promotes the adoption of practical Quality Management procedures that are generally
considered to be best practice by the accountancy profession.
In order to achieve the aforementioned objectives, the following principles must be respected:
The Quality Management is primarily educational i.e. the objective is not to penalize the professional
accountants:
• which means that professional accountants or firms that are selected for inspection are always
contacted in advance prior to the inspection
• Are given the time to prepare
• And have tools and questionnaires made available to them to prepare for the inspection
In France, Portugal and Turkey, the inspections are conducted by peers i.e. other professional accountants
in practice which contribute to the educational dimension of the process.
In addition:
• Controls and tools are adapted to the nature of the engagements performed, and the size of the
entities and the profile of the controlled practitioners.
• Controllers are subject to professional secrecy with regards to all information that they have
become aware of during the control
The Quality Management gives grounds to fruitful exchanges between practitioners: the one who is
controlled and the other who conducts the Quality Management; weaknesses identified and proposed
corrective actions are always discussed on a peer basis.
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The Quality Management is also a way to inform the practitioners about the tools and guidance developed
by the Institute in order to help them in their daily professional practice.
Finally, the Quality Management provides an opportunity to the controlled practitioners to meet a
representative of the Institute who can communicate on the role and the vocation of the Institute. It helps
maintaining a link between the Institute and its members. In the UK, ACCA designed a scheme to reward
firms that complied with all of ACCA’s best practice key controls by giving them an award or kitemark.
The firms would advertise to clients and potential clients that they held the ACCA Quality Checked award.
The intention was that all firms would want the award and would therefore comply with ACCA’s best
practice standards. There was no charge to the firms for these reviews
ACCA reviewed thousands of firms and at one point over 600 firms held the award. Most of the firms
reviewed which did not earn the award were those that had an ACCA audit licence but had an
unsatisfactory outcome on the audit quality assurance review. We decided that it would be misleading to
grant a firm the ACCA Quality Checked award if it was failing to audit to a satisfactory standard.
ACCA stopped the Quality Checked campaign a few years ago owing to increasing costs. The award would
only last six years and ACCA had to revisit those firms to revalidate their award. With increasing numbers
holding the award, the cost to ACCA became prohibitive, so ACCA discontinued it and used its staff on
audit quality assurance reviews. Overall, ACCA Quality Checked achieved its objective in that it
encouraged ACCA firms to adopt ACCA best practice standards.
ACCA Quality Checked visits are conducted by ACCA compliance officers or practice reviewers and take
place alongside routine monitoring visits where possible. Compliance officers and practice reviewers are
qualified accountants who have previously worked in practice at either manager or partner level. They visit
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numerous firms of all sizes in the course of their work and this gives them the advantage of seeing how
different firms tackle their Quality Management issues. They can call on this extensive experience to advise
and guide firms on practical controls and procedures.
Firms find the kitemark, awarded if they meet our best practice standards, very valuable. ACCA decided it
should therefore be in a position to control the reliability of these reviews, which is one reason they used
their audit monitoring staff.

II.

THE SCOPE OF THE QUALITY MANAGEMENT

The scope of the Quality Management in France is as follows:
• Every registered professional is subject to Quality Management
• Any engagement other than audit
• Every registered accountant of the firm across every structure and every location where the
practitioner may exercise.
This means that it is the individuals who are subject to Quality Management, but in practice, once an
individual registered accountant is selected in a firm, all the other partners of the firm are also controlled.
In terms of the engagements to be reviewed, it is the engagements most commonly carried by the firms
which are selected for the technical control i.e. if a firm is specialized in providing accounting services, it
is the accounting services engagements which are going to be controlled.
To select the controlled professionals, France and Portugal use a random selection:
Ø via a computer program
Ø combined with a risk-based approach taking into account:
ü
Checks concluded by a one-year re-inspection decision
ü
Guidance provided by the Institute
The selection can also include professionals who volunteer to be controlled.
In practice, the selection method should ensure that each individual practitioner is controlled on a regular
basis.
As mentioned above, in Portugal, OCC Quality Management system selects the accountants to be
controlled through an annual random draw. However not all OCC members are included in the random
draw population, the professionals who are included in the draw are selected according to the following
criteria:
- Professionals in practice;
- 20% of professionals who had been subject to disciplinary sanctions in the past;
- Voluntary nomination;
- 10% of professionals nominated by the board of directors.
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For ACCA, if a firm has an audit license, the ACCA compliance officer undertaking that review would also
undertake an ACCA Quality Checked review. To get the numbers increased ACCA also targeted firms
which did not have audit licenses for ACCA Quality Checked. At one point, ACCA was receiving requests
from some firms to undertake an ACCA Quality Checked review soon because their competitors were
already advertising that they had the kitemark/award.
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In Turkey, so far the Quality Management reviews are carried out on the basis of complaints. In addition,
the members elected by the Executive Committee of the related Chamber are periodically controlled every
6 years. Large firms are inspected by the Turkish Public Oversight Board. In case of a complaint the entire
firm is controlled.

III.

THE MEANS

In order to perform the Quality Management, the Institute needs a dedicated team of Quality Controllers
which can be either composed of staff of the Institute, like in the case of ACCA or of practitioners (peer
review principle) adequately trained to the control process.
Most commonly, the Quality Controllers are practitioners selected on the basis of multiple criteria.
A.

Selection of the Quality Controllers

In France, the Quality Controller profile is based on the following requirements; Quality Controllers need to
be:
• registered with the Institute for at least 5 years,
• free of any disciplinary sanction,
• controlled-free of a one-year re-inspection decision prior to his appointment.
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In Portugal, OCC has about 100 Quality Management teams, each of them composed of 1-3 professionals
(controllers) who have at least 5 years of professional experience and no disciplinary sanctions in the last 5
years. Every year OCC releases a public announcement with vacant positions to become a Quality
Controller. The applications are evaluated by the Quality Management commission that select the
candidates according to:
- Professional experience;
- Academic background;
- and – CV.
The Quality Management commission nominates the best candidates and submits its suggestions to the
board of directors that nominates the controllers. The final list of candidates nominated to become
controllers is published and promoted on the OCC platforms.
Professional nominated to Quality Management may reasonably refuse the designation of the control team
that may be assigned to them in the draw, within ten days of the date of receipt of the communication made
by the Quality Management commission. However, it may not refuse the re-designated team without
objective reasons.
A sufficient reason to refuse the Quality Management is the proximity, it cannot be less than 100
kilometers, between the locations where the professional to be controlled and the members of the control
team are active
As mentioned in section 1, ACCA uses its own compliance officers who are full time employees of ACCA
and were previously managers/senior managers in audit firms.
In Turkey, it is the management team of the Chamber that selects the controllers among their members.
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B.

Quality Controllers’ training

The Institute should organize appropriate training sessions to prepare the Quality Controllers to properly
communicate with the controlled professional, carry out the inspection and fill in the questionnaires and
reports.
In France, this training is a two-day training session on the control process and a one-day session on the
French standards (in order to update and refresh the controllers’ knowledge of professional standards and
good practices).
OCC Quality Controllers have the same training obligations as all the professionals. However, in certain
period, controllers had to double the hours of training sessions to which they participated compared to all
other professionals.
ACCA provides on-the-job training for new staff in audit quality assurance and, in the past, ACCA Quality
Checked reviews. This can last up to 3 months.
In Turkey, the training is provided to the controllers on the basis of 15 hours over 3 days.
The content of the training covers:
• An introduction to the Quality Management guide,
• The provision of information about the procedures to be applied in Quality Management after
explaining the standards to be followed,
• The training on Quality Management guidelines and the provision of information about the methods
to be applied during the control process.
C.

Quality Controllers’ duties

Within the exercise of his duty, the Quality Controller is subject to obligations that ensure the quality of his
inspection and of the recommendations he/she could make and the confidentiality of the process.
The Quality Controller must be independent from the controlled practitioner and is subject to professional
secrecy.
He/she would normally sign up for more than one year and agree to make himself/herself available for the
inspections during that period.
OCC Quality Controllers’ duties are, according to the Quality Management regulation:
- to comply with the duties contained in OCC statutes and code of ethics;
- to respect their duty of independence and professional secrecy about the facts observed and the
work performed;
- to perform their duties according to the Quality Management regulation;
- to report in accordance with the guidelines set by the Quality Management commission.
The duties of ACCA staff on ACCA Quality Checked are summarized in the document “ACCA Quality
Checked description”. The standards at the end of that document indicate the areas to be reviewed and
ACCA prepared a standard work programme and file inspection checklist to be completed.
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In Turkey, Quality Controllers have to:
• Review the Quality Management system of the selected firm or
• Examine a maximum of 3 client files of the controlled firm.
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Ø

Independence

This means practically that the Quality Controllers do not have any interest in the controlled firm- and for a
period of three years, are prohibited from accepting directly or indirectly an engagement from a client of the
controlled professional, without the express agreement of the professional concerned.
Ø

Professional secrecy

No information regarding the controlled professional or firm can be communicated to third parties.
Ø

Minimum availability required

Because of the significant investment required in terms of training, the Quality Controller in France is
required to sign up for a term of three years renewable and a minimum commitment of 50 hours per year
(within the limit of 200 hours).
Ø

Remuneration

The Quality Controller’s work is paid by the Institute.
When the Quality Controller is not an employee of the Institute, but an external practitioner (peer review)
he/she can be either allowed an hourly rate or receive a fixed remuneration per control conducted.

1

In Portugal, OCC Quality Controllers were paid by OCC as per the following:
- 100€ per control plus expenses;
- 200€ per control and per meeting, plus expenses for Quality Management commission members.
ACCA controllers are full time ACCA employees. ACCA has to pay them close to market rates for audit
managers/senior managers because all of them had been audit managers before we employed them.
In Turkey, controllers are paid a fixed amount per control. This amount is determined by the General
Assembly of the Chamber.

IV.

THE INSPECTION PROCESS

The aim of the Quality Management is to assess the adequacy of the professional work and the organisation
of the firm in compliance with all the applicable requirements and standards.
In order to achieve this, the Quality Management is structured in two complementary phases:
ü The analysis of the organisation of the firm and the assessment of the systems and the procedures in
place (organisational control),
ü The assessment of the compliance of the working files with the requirements and standards by
sample check (technical control).
The Quality Controller is responsible for the entire inspection process, from the planning of controls to the
drafting of the letter of findings. The Quality Management usually takes one day on site (half a day for the
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organisational control and half a day for the technical control and the review meeting with the controlled
professional).
OCC Quality Management inspection covers multiple areas and is measured by checking the following
elements:
- The relationship between the number of clients and their size, the fees charged, the number and
qualification of controlled professional employees;
- The complexity of the work to be performed and the training and professional competence of the
professional;
- The premises where it operates in relation to the number of people who work there;
- The material resources available, namely computer equipment and programs, library and
archive;
- The verification of the professional continuous professional development obligations;
- The professional practice and compliance with the accountancy and tax Portuguese standards.
OCC Quality Management process has the following steps:
- The selection of professional(s) to be controlled;
- Quality Management commission gets in contact with the professional to set the control date;
- Quality Management team perform the control on site, always with the collaboration of the
professional and according to the Quality Management guide and regulations;
- The Quality Management team draft the letter of findings and submit it to the Quality
Management commission;
- The letter of finding contains the controlled professional opinion and feedback;
- The Quality Management commission with the collaboration of the Quality Management team
elaborates the letter of finding final version and submit it to the board of directors for
appreciation;
- Board of directors in light of the elements contained in the report, as well as other matters that
are known to it, issues orders for archiving, review by the Quality Management commission or if
concludes that the code of ethics and statutory duties have been breached the board of directors
send the final report to the disciplinary board.
The ACCA process is similar to that suggested for FCM – a two stage process but a single reviewer has to
do both. Most reviews to sole practices and two partner firms can be done in a day. Larger firms
would require more time.
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In Turkey, the review process encompasses:
• The determination of the accounting firm to be examined
• The determination of the controller to carry out the examination
• The inspector’s review of the information available in the Chamber about the accounting firm to be
examined
• Visiting the firm by appointment
• During the firm’s visit, the Quality Management system of the company to be examined is
reviewed, and if there are deficiencies, one week is given for completion
• If the client file is to be inspected, the customers to be inspected are then selected and a maximum of
1 week is allowed for the preparation of the files in the desired training. After 1 week, client files are
examined.
Whether it is a Quality Management system review or a customer file review, the report containing the
findings after the review is signed together with the senior official(s) of the accounting firm.
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The controller signs a report containing its findings. This report is controlled by the Quality Management
group. Then, the controlled accounting firm is notified and finally presented with the controller’s
report.
A.

Control method

In France, the control method consists of
• Interviews with the managing partner(s) of the firm and the controlled professionals, and possibly
with the employees,
• On-site inspection: the offices, the premises intended for the storage of the files i.e. the premises
where the documentation is located,
• Checks on two or more working files; the controlled professional agrees to give the Quality
Controllers access to all the documents and supporting documentation necessary for the inspection and
to provide any useful explanations,
• The controller cannot delegate the controls.
OCC Quality Management method consists of:
- On-site inspection according the Quality Management guide and regulations.

1

The above description contains 4 points which also apply to ACCA.
B.

Main steps of the Inspection

The Quality Management involves three phases which are: first a preparatory phase during which the
controlled practitioner is informed about the inspection and will have to produce information in order to
organize the Quality Management, second the inspection process itself that takes place in the firm or the
offices of the controlled practitioner, and finally the conclusion of the Quality Management which results in
the drafting of the letter of findings to the controlled practitioner.
In most cases, those three phases take up the following main steps:

11
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Step 1- Prior information to the controlled professional
In France, the controlled professional is informed two months before the inspection, by post or email.
He/she receives the “guide for the controlled professional” that explains the Quality Management process
and objectives.
The name of the Quality Controller(s) is communicated to the controlled professional who can possibly
recuse the controller within 30 days of receipt.
Step 2- Preparatory questionnaire
The preparatory questionnaire focuses on the gathering of information on the organisation of the firm as
well as the nature of the engagements of services that are undertaken.
The controlled professional or the managing partner of the firm when the controlled professional is not the
head of the firm, is requested to complete and return the preparatory questionnaire.
The time of filling out the preparatory questionnaire is used to enable a constructive examination of the
existing situation and allow critical reflection on the firm.
The preparatory questionnaire must be completed within 30 days and sent back to the Quality Controller.
Then, the Quality Controller makes the appointment with the controlled professional to carry out the on-site
inspection.
Step 3- Organisational control
12

In France, The Quality Controller shall meet the managing partner of the firm in order to conduct the
organisational control.
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The purpose of the organisational control is to assess the organisation and the internal procedures of the
firm in order to verify that they comply with the requirements of the Institute and allow the professionals to
carry out their engagements properly.
During the verification, the controller completes the questionnaire of Organisational Control, where he
assesses the organisation of the firm and the procedures implemented in terms of supervision, actions to
maintain competences to a high level (CPD), skills assessment system and remuneration, procedures of
acceptance and continuance, rules of collegiality and professional secrecy, AML requirement and internal
quality review (Annex 2).
In Portugal, OCC Quality Management verification is always conducted with the collaboration and follow
up of the controlled professional, no controls are performed without the professional reasonable permission
and collaboration.
ACCA Quality Checked reviews were mandatory for all ACCA firms. However, firms were not obliged to
implement the standards of ACCA Quality Checked if they did not wish to do so.
Step 4 - Technical control
The Quality Controller shall meet the controlled professional in order to conduct the technical control.
The purpose of the technical control is to dive into the client file in order to assess how the controlled
professional apply both the requirements of the Institute regarding the contents of the files, and the internal
procedures described during the organisational control.

1

On a sample basis, the controller verifies the actual existence of a client file (physical and digital files are
accepted) and if the client file contains the required documentation such as the questionnaire of the
engagement acceptance (which purpose is to assess whether the professional can perform the engagement,
in compliance with laws and regulations, including Anti-Money Laundering requirements, and the Code of
Ethics for Professional accountants), the engagement letter, the timing of the engagement and the resources
allocated, the report and / or attestation issued
In France, two clients’ files by controlled professionals are usually verified.
The Quality Controller shall meet the controlled professional and carry out on-site checks in order to
conduct the technical control. During the verification, the controller completes the questionnaire of
Technical Control, which is scalable to the nature and circumstances of engagements that the firm performs
(Appendix 2)
Step 5 - Control report
In France, at the end of the inspection process, interviews and working files control, the Quality Controller
prepares a control report which includes an executive summary of the organisational control and an
executive summary of the technical control.
This control report is discussed with the controlled professional.
The control report prepared by the Quality Controller, which includes his comments and recommendations,
will be used to prepare the letter of findings
In Portugal, OCC Quality Management report must comply with the following rules:
- The conclusions will be objective, substantiated and correspond to homogeneous interventions;
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-

It must include the controlled professionals opinion on the findings of the Quality Management;

The ACCA compliance officer is required to discuss all matters arising – including any deficiencies in best
practice – with the firm’s partners at the end of the review. Subsequently the firm receives a report from
ACCA and may query any matter. This encourages the compliance officer to ensure that all matters likely
to be in the report are discussed at the visit.
In Turkey, during the firm-based reviewing the firm reports the results of its Quality Management to the
project team on a draft basis. At the firm’s level, the general result determined is communicated to all
personnel. The firm notifies all staff by one of its partners (which is generally preferred to be the partner
responsible for Quality Management).
After the Quality Management service is provided, a report is signed according to the findings between the
professional accountancy organisation and the accounting firm. A copy of the report prepared as 2 copies is
given to the accounting firm. The Quality Controller prepares a report based on this report. The report
includes changes and recommendations. A copy of the report is notified to the professional accountant (the
controlled professional) by the institute.
Step 6- Letter of findings to the controlled professional
In France, the control report draft is based on a contradictory procedure carried at the on-site inspection,
where the Quality Controller discusses his findings with the controlled professional who can reply and
explain.
When issued, the final control report contains the findings (weaknesses and deficiencies), the responses of
the controlled professional and the recommendations from the Quality Controller.
The final control report is transmitted to the President of the regional branch Institute in France who
analyses it and prepares a letter of findings sent to the controlled professional, with a copy to the managing
partner(s) of the firm.
The letter of findings can be without observation, with observation(s) or with observations and decision to
re-check after one year and the controlled professional may have to attend a specific training on areas of
weaknesses identified.
In case of new failures after the one-year re-inspection, it may lead to a disciplinary procedure.
C.

14

Conclusion of the inspection – corrective actions

There are different possible conclusions and remediations to a Quality Management visit. In France, they
are as follows:
• Letter of findings:
• without observation
• with observation(s)
• With observations, and decision to re-check at one year
• The controlled professional may have to attend a specific training on areas of weaknesses identified
• In case of new failures after the one-year re-inspection: disciplinary procedure
OCC quality conclusions of the inspection are exactly the same as above.
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V.

THE TOOLS

In France, the tools for the Quality Management are mainly composed of the following questionnaires and
guide:
• Preparatory questionnaire (filled out by the controlled professional and submitted to the controller
30 days before the inspection),
• Organisational questionnaire (filled out by the controller),
• Technical questionnaire (filled out by the controller, per engagement examined),
• the “guide for the controlled professional” (that explains the Quality Management process and
objectives).
Examples of the tools used by the OCC in Portugal, CSOEC in France and the ACCA are provided in the
appendices to this guide.

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 : OCC - Quality Control guide
Appendix 2.1: CSOEC - Preparatory questionnaire
Appendix 2.2 : CSOEC - Organisational questionnaire
Appendix 2.3 : CSOEC - Technical questionnaire
Appendix 3 : ACCA- Quality Checked description

1
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A Guide for the implementation of Quality Control
for Services other than Audit
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Quality Control Guide
(Cross control)

Page 1
TOC No..........

1. Identification
Name:

Certified Accountant (TOC) No:
Mobile Phone:
e-mail:

VAT:
Fax:

Date of birth:

/

/

Telephone:

@

.

Address:

Professional address:

1

Academic / professional qualifications: (Paragraph b, No. 1, art. 4th QCR)
Graduate / bachelor's degree

high school equivalent

Masters / doctorate

other qualifications

2. Method of carrying on the activity (Paragraph a), No.1, art. 3rd QCR - art. 7th and 8th Statute of Certified Accountants OrderEOTOC)
2.1 Do you pursue exclusively this activity

Yes

No

2.2 Are you self-employed as an independent professional

Yes

No

2.3 Are you a partner, manager or CEO of a Commercial Company (Accounting Office)

Yes

No

2.4 Do you work for others

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

2.4.1 Do you work for an Accounting Office or similar firm
2.5 Are you a civil servant performing accounting activity in the Central, Regional or Local Administration
2.6 Another form of activity. Describe:

2.7 Points awarded (article 8th of the EOTOC)
2.A Do you assume the role of head of an Accounting Firm
(If Yes, complete and attach Annex A to the Quality Control Guide)

17
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Page 2
TOC No..........
No. ...........

A1. Identification of the Accounting Firm where you hold the position of Technical Manager
Firm:

VAT:

Tel:

Phone:

Website:

Fax:

e-mail:

@

.

Address:

Registration as Technical Manager
Date of Registration:

OTOC documentation on file?

Yes

No

Current Appointment?

Yes

No

Current contract?

Yes

No

A2.1 Clients’ contracts put to written form?

Yes

No

A2.2 Communications control of article 10th of the EOTOC?

Yes

No

A2.3 Activity limits control (art. 8th and 9th of the EOTOC - score)

Yes

No

A2.4 Control of actions related to loyalty duties between TOCs (change of TOC)

Yes

No

A2.5 Training duties control (obtaining credits as in Paragraph e) of art. 4th of the QCR)

Yes

No

A2.6 If the Firm receives interns (for future registration as TOC), is there a follow-up?

Yes

No

Yes

No

Relationship with the Accounting Firm:

Manager
Dependent worker

Role of Technical Manager
Number of TOCs providing services by the Accounting Firm
Of which under employment contract
In a universe of

and service providers
Accounting Firm clients with a TOC service contract.

A2. Guarantee of statutory and deontological duties (art. 17th-C EOTOC)

A2.7 Is the level of accepted retainers compatible with compliance with No. 6 & 7, art. 52nd of the EOTOC? (*)

Yes

A2.8 Advertising. Control of compliance with article 53rd of the EOTOC?
A2.9 Other Verifications

(*) - Comments:

18
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Quality Control Guide

Page 3
(Cross control)

3. Activity indicators

(Paragraph a), No.1, art. 4th QCR)

3.1 Number of clients in total income range (*):
No. OF CLIENTS

SELECTED
INTERVAL

Up to 150.000

3.3 Totals:

Between 150.000 and 375.000

No. of Clients:

Between 375.000 and 1.000.000

Office Annual Turnover:

Between 1.000.000 and 2.500.000

monthly TOC:

Between 2.500.000 and 5.000.000

monthly Office:

Between 5.000.000 and 10.000.000

3.4 Client’s choice

Turnover TOC Annual:
Average fee
Average fee

VAT of chosen client
by the control team:

Between 10.000.000 and 20.000.000

Over 20.000.000
Social Object:

1

3.2 Data for 10 clients in the chosen interval
Accounting Standard:
Entity type
No.

VAT

CAE

YEAR

TOTAL income

Quotas
SA

With
Reviewer

Without
Reviewer

IRS
Organized
Accounting

Other
entity

TOC ANNUAL
TURNOVER

COMMENTS

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

3.5 Activity Limits (art. 8 EOTOC)

accumulated points.

(*) - Mandatorily attach listing taken from the finance portal for taxpayers for which TOC functions are
performed.
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TOTAL

Total

TOC's

No. of workers
off premises

TOTAL

No. of hours

Number of hours spent in
training in the last two years

Other

TOTAL

High school education

Graduates / Bachelors other courses

Graduates / Bachelors Management

Graduates / Bachelors Accounting

Doctors and masters

Number of self-employed collaborators
Total
collaborat
ors

Comments: (NOT APPLICABLE WITH TOC WORKER HIRED BY OTHERS, THOUGH SHOULD BE CONSIDERED IN QUALITATIVE ANALYSIS - CONCLUSION SHEET NO. 2)

Other

High school education

Graduates / Bachelors other courses

Graduates / Bachelors Management

Graduates / Bachelors Accounting

Doctors and masters

Number of employed collaborators

(excluding controlled TOC)

4. Human resources involved in the activity (Paragraph a), No. 1, art. 4th QCR)

20
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Weekly
hours

of which
are TOCs

No.
hr./week
Collab
. TOC

No. ...........

TOC No.....

Page 4

Quality Control Guide
(Cross control)
5.

Organizational structure of the activity

5.1 Facilities

(Paragraph c), No.1, art. 4th QCR)

Page 5
TOC No. ...........
(TO TAKE INTO CONSIDERATION
OBS. FROM POINT No. 4)
area in
m2

Own

Ratio:

Leased

m2 / collaborator

Other

area
collaborator

Total occupied
area
5.2 Equipment and others

(Paragraph d), No. 1, art. 4th
QCR)

Number of computers (CPUs)
Number of printers
Networking

Yes

No

Using specific management software

Yes

No

The software has the module:

Accounting

Invoicing

Salary

Gest. Assets

1

Last update of management software:
Have internet

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Archived Documents

Yes

No

Separated by months

Yes

No

Treated documents, separated from untreated

Yes

No

Non-accounting documents are separated.

Yes

No

Have archive

Yes

No

Area spent with archive is sufficient

Yes

No

and clearly organized

Yes

No

Archives are located in safe spaces.

Yes

No

Yes

No

broadband
How many collaborators have professional email
Have website
Which address: www.
Have fax
5.3 Archive

Client document file is identified

What is the periodicity of computer security
Computer security is on the premises
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6.

TOC No........

No. ...........

TOC Professional Update (Paragraph e), No. 1, art. 4th QCR)
6.1

Are you exempt from obtaining training credits

Yes

No

What's the disposition?
6.2

Attended OTOC training courses
OTOC Credits

Training attended in current year
Training attended in year n-1
Training attended in year n-2
Ascertained discrepancies - detail:

6.3

Training provided by other entities

OTOC
credits

6.3.1 Recognized by the OTOC
Training attended this current year

1

Training attended in year n-1
Training attended in year n-2
Ascertained discrepancies - detail:

6.4

Update means and documentation used by TOC
Few
Uses

Frequently

Rarely

Use of SITOC
On paper

Online

On CD

Use of tax codes
6.5

Library
Do you have a technical library

Yes

No

Do you have archive of technical journals

Yes

No

Other technical publications:
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Quality Control Guide
(Performance control)

Page 7
TOC No. ...........

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th QCR)
Random control of the chosen client
Client VAT

C.A.E.

7. Chosen Client Overview

Yes No

Written service agreement

N/A

Comments

………………………

Deed of incorporation ............................................... .............................
Start of activity Statement.............................................. ............... …
Statements of amendments ............................................... .........................
Updated registration at the Commercial Registry ........................
Registration with the regulatory body of the activity ..........................................
..... ..
Responsible for salary processing ....................................
Article 10th, of updated EOTOC …………………………………………
Articles 56th of the EOTOC and 17th of the CDTOC, fulfilled ………………….
Requested the optional declaration provided for in Paragraph 6, art. 12th
of the CDTOC

8. Accounting / Tax Verification of the Chosen Client (paper or digital media)
Uses Cost Accounting or Management ..................................
Last year's tax file (year:

1

) ........................................ ..
)…................ ....

Last month treated through accounting (mm:
Last bank conciliation (mm/yy:

/

)…………………

Trial Balance - last issued (mm/yy:

/

)…..........................

Extracts c/c, diaries and year documents .............................................
Last three periodic TAX(IVA) returns filed on time? .................

....

Last three tax withholding returns delivered on time? ......

....

Did you inform the amounts of special on account payments on time? ..........
Do you have any missing reporting obligations attributable to the TOC?
...............
…………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………..
………………………………………………………………………………….

Notes:
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Page 8
TOC No. ...........

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th QCR)
Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

C.A.E.

9. Document Verification (paper or digital media)

Yes No N/A

Comments

1 Proof of delivery of Model 22 and its Annex A .....................
2 Proof of delivery of IES and its Annexes .............................
3 Balance Sheet (*) ............................................................................................... ..........
4 Profitability Analysis by Nature (*) ............................................
5 Profitability Analysis by Function (*) ..............................................
6 Statement of changes in equity (*) ...........................................
7 Notes to the Financial Statements (*) ...........................................................
8 Cash flow statement (*) ........................................................
9 Management Report and Annex (*) ........................................................................
10 Minutes of Approval of Accounts (*) ....................................................................
11 Legal Certification of Accounts ....................................................................
12 Report and Opinion of the Statutory Audit Board / Single Auditor ................................
13 Trial Balance before clearance .................................................................
14 Year-end postings .............................................................
15 Trial balances after clearance ....................................................................
16 Clear and reliable taxable profit clearance-IRC, Autonomous Taxation, Etc…
17 Depreciation and amortization maps .............................................................
18 Adjustments and provisions maps .............................................................
19 Capital gains and losses map .........................................................
20 Document proving uncollectable credits .........................................
21 Breakdown of deductible and Non-deductible donations ......................................
22 Inventory statement at the end of the year valued and signed by the
management ………………………………

23 Discriminatory statement of imputation of income in the case of tax
transparency ................................... ................................................

24 Maps of withholdings made to third parties (article 119 of the CIRS) of the
various categories, which allow the model 10 to be checked .........................

25 Guide for on account payments and special on account payments.......
26 Supporting documents of the I.R. withholdings made by third parties

..................................................................................................................

27 Transfer pricing file .................................................................

24
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10.

Page 9
TOC No. ..........

TOC - Client Relationship

Client VAT
(TAKE INTO CONSIDERATION THE REMARKS OF POINT NO. 4)

10.1

Client contacts
FREQUENCY
Meetings
Pick up/deliver documentation
Financial statements
Legislation
"Newsletter" - various topics
Other reports (describe)

1

Comments:
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Page 10

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th QCR)
Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.1 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH

Yes No N/A

Comments

Have you confirmed with the client the composition of the cash balance?
Have you drafted (or confirmed) bank conciliations?
Did you compare the balances of the year with those of the previous year?
Have you agreed to the financial plans for time deposit compensation
in order to calculate interest and periodization?
Did you use foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date to
account for foreign currency deposits? (indicate source)
Did you confirm the cut-off values of operations by analyzing yearend and beginning-of-next year movements with particular attention
to time deposit interest?
Have bank and cash deposit balances been properly presented
and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
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TOC No.

........

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th QCR)
Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.2 (OTHER) NET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Yes

No

N/A

Comments

Have you checked the latest available statements on financial instruments?
Have you prepared/updated the map of financial instruments in accordance with
the valuation criteria and verified the need for
impairments, given the value (expected market / realization)?
Did you compare the balances of the year with those of the previous year?
Did you access foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date for
accounting for financial instruments in foreign currency? (indicate source)
Have you confirmed the cut-off values of operations by analyzing
year-end and beginning-of-next year movements with particular

1

attention to market prices (balance sheet date)?

The balances of financial instruments were appropriately
presented and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
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Page 12
TOC No. ..........

Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th
QCR)

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.3 CLIENTS

Yes

No

N/A

Comments

Have you confirmed/updated the Client map - Securities to draw?
Have you confirmed the regularity of atypical client balances?
Have you done an ageing analysis of debtors?
Did you carry out impairments dependent on the age of the balances?
Have you effected impairments due to legal proceedings in order to
recover debts?
Have you accessed foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date
for accounting clients with foreign currency operations? (indicate
source)
Have you confirmed cut-off values of operations by analyzing year-end
and beginning-of-next year movements?
Have you checked if TAX (IVA) has been paid in the client’s advance
payments?
Have the client’s balances been adequately presented and disclosed in
the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
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Page 13
TOC Nº...........

Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th
QCR)

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.4 SUPPLIERS

Yes

No

N/A

Comments

Have you confirmed / updated the Supplier map - Securities to be paid?
Have you confirmed the regularity of atypical supplier balances?
Have you done an ageing analysis of debtors?
Did you access foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date for
accounting
suppliers with operations in foreign currency? (indicate source)
Have you confirmed cut-off values of operations by analyzing
year-end and beginning-of-next year movements?
Were the supplier balances properly presented
and disclosed in the Financial Statements?

1

……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
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Page 14
TOC Nº...........

Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th
QCR)

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.5 STATE AND OTHER PUBLIC ENTITIES

Yes

No

N/A

Comments

Did you compare the year balances with those of the previous year?
Have you confirmed monthly based balances (IRS/IRC withholdings;
S.S.)?
Have you confirmed balance of payments on account (PPC and
PEPC)?
Have you released a tax estimate for the year?
Have you tested TAX(IVA) balances against the Periodic
Declaration?
Have you confirmed cut-off values of operations by analyzing
year-end and beginning-of-next year movements?
Were state and other public entities balances adequately
presented and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
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TOC Nº...........

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th QCR)
Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.6 OBTAINED FINANCING

Yes

No N/A

Comments

Did you compare the balances of the year with those of the previous year?
Did you check the balances of the obtained financing from the statements of the
credit institutions / financial corporations / related?
Did you access the bank credit compliance plans for interest calculation and
periodization?
Did you access foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date for accounting
of credits obtained in foreign currency? (indicate source)
Did you check the Finance Lease contracts, reconciled and cleared
the divergences of the debtor and creditor balances?
Are loan / supplementary / ancillary instalments adequately supported
and reflected?

1

Were the balances of the obtained financing properly presented and
disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….

31

Piazza de la Repubblica 59 | 00185 ROMA | secretariat@fcmweb.org

Page 16

Quality Control Guide
(Performance control)

TOC Nº...........

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th QCR)
Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.7 SHAREHOLDERS/PARTNERS (INCLUDES GROUP COMPANIES)

Yes

No

N/A

Comments

Have you done an ageing analysis of debtors?
Did you confirm the cut-off values of operations by analyzing year-end and
beginning-of-next year movements?
Are there unfulfilled recognized membership values?
Have the balances of shareholders/partners and group companies been properly presented
and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
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Page 17
TOC Nº...........

Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4
art. 4th QCR)

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.8 OTHER RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE ACCOUNTS

Yes No

N/A

Comments

Have you confirmed/updated map of Oth. Rec./Pay. Acc. - Securities to
rec./pay?
Have you done an ageing analysis of debtors?
Did you access foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date for
accounting
suppliers with operations in foreign currency? (indicate source)
Have you confirmed cut-off values of operations by analyzing
year-end and beginning-of-next year movements?

Did you carry out impairments depending on the age of the balances?

1

Were there any recognized deferred tax assets or liabilities, with
the proper support?

Were the balances of other receivable and payable accounts appropriately
presented and disclosed in the Financial Statements?

……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
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Page 18

Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4
art. 4th QCR)

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.9 ACCRUAL BASIS

Yes No

N/A

Comments

Did you compare the balances of the year with those of the previous
year?
Have you done an ageing analysis of debtors?
Especially, did you considered movements in:
●Staff costs (Vacations, next year's vacation allowance)?
●Insurance?
●Interest?
● Operating subsidies?
●Other expenses or income?
Have you confirmed cut-off values of operations by analyzing
year-end and beginning-of-next year movements?
Was the percentage of completion method appropriately
calculated?
Were the balances of debtors and creditors by accruals and deferrals appropriately
presented and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
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TOC Nº...........

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th QCR)
Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.10 PROVISIONS

Yes

No N/A

Comments

Have you accessed minutes, agreements and other relevant
documentation justifying the constitution/increase/reduction of
provisions?
Did you confirm the cut-off values by analyzing year-end and
beginning-of-next year movements?
Were contingent assets or liabilities disclosed?
Were the provision balances appropriately presented
and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….

1

……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
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Page 20
TOC Nº...........
(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4
art. 4th QCR)

random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.11 INVENTORIES AND BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Yes No

N/A

Comments

Have you checked the inventory map in accordance with
the valuation criteria and verified the need for
impairments, given the value (expected market / realization)?
Did you confirm physical inventory data with Accounting balances?
Have you confirmed cut-off values of operations by analyzing
year-end and beginning-of-next year movements with special attention
to market prices (balance sheet date)?
Was the variation of product production and / or clearance
and work in progress properly calculated?
Were the inventory balances properly presented
and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
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TOC Nº...........

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th QCR)
Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.12

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Yes No

N/A

Comments

Have you verified a portfolio of securities related to financial investments?
Have you checked the map of financial investments with respect to the
valuation criteria and verified the need for impairment, given the
expected (realization / market) value?

Have you accessed foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date for accounting
financial investments in foreign currency? (indicate source)
Have you confirmed the cut-off values of operations by analyzing yearend and beginning-of-next year movements with particular attention to
market prices (balance sheet date)?

1

Was the equity method (MEP) adequately used to
value financial instruments?
Was the value of goodwill (or negative goodwill) properly determined
when acquiring financial investments?
Is there an annual impairment test for goodwill
recoverability?
Have financial investment balances been properly presented
and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
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Page 22
TOC Nº...........

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th QCR)
Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.13

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Yes No N/A

Comments

Have you drafted / updated the investment property map?
Have you created/updated the amortisation schedule of investment properties?

Did you confirm physical inventory data with accounting balances?
Are the property records at the land registry office and at the
Tax Administration updated?
Did you confirm the cut-off values by analyzing year-end and
beginning-of-next year movements?
If the acquisition cost is measured, is the fair value of the properties
adequately disclosed?
Were investment property balances adequately
presented and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
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Page

23

TOC Nº...........

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th QCR)
Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.14 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Yes

No N/A

Comments

Did you draft / update the tangible fixed assets map?
Did you prepare / update the depreciation map of tangible fixed assets?
Did you confirm physical inventory data with accounting balances?
Did you check the purchase of vehicles taking into account the relevant
situations for the determination of autonomous taxation?
Did you verify the documentary support for the disposal of tangible fixed assets by
alienation (invoice or eq.) or destruction (Notice of disposal)?
Did you confirm the cut-off values by analyzing year-end and
beginning-of-next year movements?

1

Are the property records at the land registry office and at the
Tax Administration updated?
Were the balances of tangible fixes assets adequately
presented and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
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(Performance control)

TOC Nº...........

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4 art. 4th QCR)
Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.15

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND NON CURRENT ASSETS
HELD FOR SALE

Comments
Yes

No

N/A

Have you prepared / updated the intangible assets map?
Have you prepare/update the intangible asset amortization map?
Is the accounting and amortization of intangible assets
in compliance with NCRF No. 6?
Have you checked minutes and contracts to detect new
assets and secure existing ones?
Have you confirmed cut-off values of operations by analyzing
year-end and beginning-of-next year movements?
Is there an annual impairment test for assets with
indefinite lifespan?
Are there appropriately recognized Non-current assets
held for sale, with adequate support?
Were the balances of Non-current assets held for sale adequately presented and
disclosed in the financial statements?
Were the balances of intangible assets adequately
presented and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
……………………………………………………………………………….
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Page 25
TOC Nº...........

Random control of the chosen client - document verification
Client’s VAT

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd; and No. 4
art. 4th QCR)

C.A.E.

11. Account Analysis
11.16 EQUITY / OWN FUNDS

Yes No

N/A

Comments

Is the capital presented in the financial statements
just the paid-up capital?
Were the owned shares / quotas adequately
recognized and measured?

Do supplementary / ancillary instalment amounts comply with
the equity instrument definition provided for in NCRF 27?
Has the legal reserve value or other obligatory statutory reserves
been correctly calculated?

1

Have year corrections, changes in accounting policies or estimates been adequately
recognized and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
Have MEP adjustments related to financial investments
been properly done?
Have revaluation surpluses and related deferred taxes
been properly treated?
Have investment grants and related deferred taxes
been properly treated?
Have equity / own funds been appropriately
presented and disclosed in the Financial Statements?
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………
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TOC Nº...........

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 18th QCR)

1. Cross-control analysis
1.1 Activity indicators
Relationship between number of clients and their size; charged fees

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

(Paragraph a), No. 1, art. 4th QCR)

1.2 Human resources involved
1.2.1 Number and qualification of collaborators
(Paragraph a), No. 1, art. 4th QCR)

1.2.2 The complexity of the work to be done and the TOC's training and competence
Form of performance of the duties assigned to the TOC (Article 6th of the
EOTOC)
(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 4th QCR)

1.3 Organizational Structure
1.3.1 Are the working premises appropriate, given the number of people
who work there
(Paragraph c), No.1, art. 4th QCR)

1.3.2 Are the equipment and other material means appropriate
(Paragraph d), No. 1, art. 4th QCR)

1.3.3 Are the archives Non-promiscuously organized
and unambiguously identified
(Paragraph d), No. 1, art. 4th QCR)

1.4 Professional Update
1.4.1 Do you gather the annual average of 35 credits over the last two years
(Paragraph e), No. 1, art. 4th QCR)

1.4.2 Are the library and updating media you use the most suitable
(Paragraph d), No. 1, art. 4th QCR)

2. Analysis of performance control

(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 3rd QCR and No. 1, art. 6th, EOTOC)

2.1 Client Situation Overview
2.1.1 Do you have control over the client’s documentation and business records

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

2.1.2 Have you updated the procedure provided for in art. 10th EOTOC

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

2.1.3 The client's accounting status is up to date

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

2.1.4 The reporting tax obligations are up to date

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

2.1.5 Are there tax fines attributable to the TOC

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

2.2.1 The elements of the tax file are properly organized.

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

2.2.2 Account analysis confirms good practice

EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABL
E

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

2.1.2 Have you respected the duties of loyalty laid down in the EOTOC and
CDTOC

2.2 Document verification

theoretical - practical
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(Paragraph b), No. 1, art. 18th QCR)

3.

Control Team’s Conclusions
3.1

organizational structure

(circle the controller’s assessment)

(Qualitative assessment with particular regard to points 2, 3, 4, among others that the controller considers relevant)
EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABLE

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

Rationale:

3.2

working space organization

(circle the controller’s assessment)

(Qualitative assessment with particular regard to points 5, 6 and 7, among others that the controller considers relevant)
EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABLE

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

Rationale:

3.3

client’s documentary organization

(circle the controller’s assessment)

(Qualitative assessment with particular regard to points 5.3;7;8 and 9, among others that the controller considers relevant)
EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABLE

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

Rationale:

3.4

organizational reliability

1

(circle the controller’s assessment)

(Qualitative assessment with particular regard to points 5.3;8;10 and 11, among others that the controller considers relevant)
EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABLE

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

Rationale:

3.5

ethical and deontological behaviour

(circle the controller’s assessment)

(Qualitative assessment with particular regard to points 3, 6.1 and 7, among others that the controller considers relevant)
EXCELENT

VERY GOOD

GOOD

REASONABLE

WEAK

MEDIOCRE

BAD

Rationale:

The quality control team
(Signature)

,

4.

(signature)

of

of

(place and date)

The TOC’s opinion on the conclusions of the Control Team

43

,

of
(place and date)

of
(TOC’s signature)

Piazza de la Repubblica 59 | 00185 ROMA | secretariat@fcmweb.org

APPENDIX 2.1 : CSOEC – Preparatory
questionnaire

1

44

A Guide for the implementation of Quality Control
for Services other than Audit

Piazza de la Repubblica 59 | 00185 ROMA | secretariat@fcmweb.org

Piazza de la Repubblica 59 | 00185 ROMA | secretariat@fcmweb.org

General information on the firm
Firm's organization
Firm's staff
Skills maintenance
Clients and engagements of the firm
Working methods of the firm
Other places of professional practice of the firm
Other structures of practice of the certified accountants
Corporate positions of the firm's certified accountants and interests held
Partnerships and network in France and abroad

1/14

All the areas to be filled in are shaded and their size is adjustable to the length of the text.
For a line break within a cell (for example, for an enumeration), please press Alt-Enter

P1
P2
P3
P4
P5
P6
A1
A2
A3
A4

This questionnaire includes several worksheet tabs corresponding to :

Complete list of additional files to the Questionnaire

Personal email of the professional in charge

Name of the firm

Date of sending of the file

SUMMARY

Quality control concerns the firm and all the Certified Accountants of the firm (partners and non-partners).
It deals both with the main office, as well as, when appropriate, with the secondary office(s).

Please find enclosed the preparatory questionnaire, as well as a guide enabling you to better understand what it will provide you
with.

1

45

Preparatory questionnaire

1- GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE FIRM

Controller 's Comments

1.1 Certified Accountants having an activity within the firm
Name and surname

Managing Partner

Partner

Non-partner

Function within the firm

1.2 Contact information of the firm
Address
Postal code and town
Phone number
Fax
E-mail
Web
1.3 Person in charge of relation with controllers

Yes/No

1.4 Are there other places of professional practice ? (Yes or No)
If yes, please complete the table attached to the questionnaire and entitled
A1 Other places of professional practice

1

Click on the hypertext link to access the table

46
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Preparatory questionnaire

1- GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE FIRM

Controller 's Comments

1.5 Do the certified accountants of the firm practice within other professionnal structures? (Yes or No)
If so, please complete the table attached to the questionnaire and entitled :
A2 Other structures of professional practice
Click on the hypertext link to access the table

1.6 Do the firm and the certified accountants hold :
- shareholdings, interests and engagements in another firm ?
- financial holdings in corporations of any kind ?
If yes, please complete the table attached to the questionnaire and entitled :
A3 Corporate positions and shareholdings
Click on the hypertext link to access the table

1.7 Are you a member of a network or other partnerships in France or abroad ?
If yes, please complete the table attached to the questionnaire and entitled :
A4 Partnerships and network in France or abroad
Click on the hypertext link to access the table

Have you exhaustively documented the questions related to the "General information" ? (Yes or No)

1
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Preparatory questionnaire

2 - ORGANISATION OF THE FIRM

Controller's comments

2.1 Describe the firm's organisation chart : (enclose an attachment if necessary):
Name and function

Attached to

2.2 Handbook of Procedures
Do you avail of a handbook of procedures ?
If yes, does this handbook take into account :
- the procedures relating to anti-money laundering?
- the control of the compliance with the procedures described hereabove ?

Yes/No

2.3 Describe the procedure for delegation of signature :

2.4 Certification ISA 9001
Is the firm certified ISO 9001?
If yes, since when (month, year) ?
Until which term (year)
2.5 Outsourcing (including subcontracting) :
Do you use external expert support (Certified accountants, lawyers, others…) in
France or abroad ?
If yes, describe the procedure in place :

2.6 Communication
Do you use one or the other of the following communication means ?
- Organization of information meetings
- Display
- Advertising announcements (Please specify)
- Directories or Internet
Do you conduct other actions of communication ?

Have you exhaustively documented the questions related to your firm's organisation. (Yes or No)
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Preparatory questionnaire

3 - FIRM'S STAFF

Controller's comments

3.1 Staff
3-1-1 Please complete the following table (for the last period) :
Breakdown of total staff
Classification

Total number

Partner certified accountants
Non-partner certified accountants
Total number of certified accountants
Graduated certified accountants (not registered at the Institute)
Employees

Accounting

tax and legal

Social

IT

Other
advisory

Admin

0
0
0

Total number of firm's staff
Certified accountant trainees

0

3-1-2 Evolution of the staff during the last three periods:
Staff number
Period N-1
Period N-1

Evolution
(%)

Comments

Period N-3

3.2 Recruitment of staff
Specify the staff profile (origin and basic training)
Undergraduates / Bachelor's level
Masters degrees
University degrees
Business schools
Others
Total staff

Number of staff

specify

0

Additional comments
3.3 Assessment
How do you assess the staff (existence of a formalized system,
frequency of assessments,…) ?

1

3.4 Remuneration
What is the remuneration policy ?
Is it formalized?
3.5 Does the employment contract include clauses?
of non-competition
of confidentiality

Staff

Trainees

3.6 Independence
Is there a written confirmation of independence from the staff ?
Is such a confirmation made on an yearly basis ?
Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to the
firm's staff ? (Yes or No)
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Preparatory questionnaire

Controllers's
comments

4 - SKILLS MAINTENANCE
4.1 Organisation of the means to maintain the skills and knowledge
Describe the means used (internal or external, …) :

4.2 Planning and follow-up of training
How many hours a year are dedicated to certified accountants' training sessions ?
Yes/No

Is there a training plan quantified according to the level of staff and adapted to the
various engagements of the firm ?
Is there an individual follow-up of the training received ?
Has a specific training been followed by the certified accountants on anti-money laundering ?
Has a specific training been followed by staff on anti-money laundering ?
4.3 Internal training
Draw up the list of such trainings or attach your file for the last three years
Nb of
hours
dedicated

Theme

Certified accountants and staff
Name

Level

1
4.4 External training
Draw up the list of such trainings or attach your file for the last three years
Nb of
hours
dedicated

Theme

Certified accountants and staff
Name

4.5 Documentation
Describe the documentation available to staff :
Standards and Code of Ethics
Documentary bases on line
Others, to be specified

Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to the skills maintenance ? (Yes or No)
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Level

Preparatory questionnaire

Controller 's
comments

5 - CLIENTS AND ENGAGEMENTS OF THE FIRM

5.1 Global activity breakdown
Number of client files

N-1

N-2

5-1-1 Fill in the following table
N.B. : specify the engagements identifed within the office, either on the basis of the office's accounts or on the basis of fees notes, or empirically

Number of engagements

Engagements

N-1

Assurance engagements on full historical accounts
Presentation
Limited review
Contractual audit
Other assurance engagements
Special attestations
Assurance engagements on forecasts
Other engagements (to be specified) :

Volume of fees

N-2

N-1

N-2

Non-assurance engagements
Review engagements based on agreed-upon procedures
Compilation engagements
Non-assurance engagements endowed by law or regulations (electoral campaign accounts, ...)
Other non-assurance engagements provided for by law or regulations
Other services
Accounting services
Tax services
Social services
Legal services
Private individuals services
Other services (to be specified)
Total number

0

0

0

1

0

5-1-2 Which are the five most significant amounts of fees received from one client or clients from the same group during the last
period (year N-1), including other services but exclusive of legal audit and of forensic services ?
File (Denomination or internal code)

Fees

1
2
3
4
5

%

Types of services

0

5.2 Fees
5.2.1 What is your method for billing fees?

Yes/No

Time spent
Fixed amount
Fixed amount with regularization
Act
Other methods of remuneration
Specify

5.2.2 Describe the calculation method of your fees, of time management and of invoicing (software
used, procedures,…)
5.3 Acceptance and continuance of engagements
5.3.1 Have you taken over a file from a fellow profesionnal during the last three years ?
5.3.2 Have the relevant legal requirements been complied with ? (letter to your fellow membrer)
5.3.3 Have Anti-money Laundering requirements been complied with ?
Are such requirements documented?
5.3.4 Have Quality control requirements been complied with? (competency, skills, client's integrity,
conflicts of interests) ?
5.3.5 In case of the occurrence of a risk likely to challenge the independence principle, are there
safeguarding measures available ?
5.3.6 Do you materialize in the file the acceptance and continuance of engagements ?
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Preparatory questionnaire

5 - CLIENTS AND ENGAGEMENTS OF THE FIRM

Controller 's
comments

5.4 Engagement letter
5.4.1 Do you draw up an engagement letter for your new client ?
5.4.2 Have you sent an engagement letter to your former clients ?
5.4.3 Do you regularly update your engagement letters ?
5.4.4

Are engagement letters routinely initialled and signed by clients, including general conditions?

Enclose an engagement letter model in the form of a file
5.5 Reports
5.5.1 Does the firm deliver the report as provided for by law or regulations ?
5.5.2 What is the form used for the preparation of such report ?
5.5.3 Is such report prepared for any type of engagement ?
Specify

5.6 Insurance of risks
5.6.1

Are the following risks insured ?
- Civil liability regarding clients, covering all the work and activities
- Restoration of archives
- Fire
- Operating loss
- Computer and Cyber risks
- Professional use of personal vehicles

5.6.2 Does the firm check on a yearly basis the adequacy of its insurance cover in relation to the nature
and the importance of the engagements effectively carried out ?
5.6.3 Has an assistance convention been signed with a fellow member in order to ensure the firm's
continuity in case of a serious impediment to practice?
Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to the clients and the engagements of the firm ? (Yes or No) ?
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1

Preparatory questionnaire

Controller's comments

6 - WORKING METHODS OF THE FIRM

6.1 Procedures
6.1.1 Is your handbook of internal procedures defined by the head office (in case of plurality of offices)?

Yes/No

6.1.2 Is there a handbook of internal procedures specific to the secondary office?
Comments, if any
6.1.3 Does this handbook include the following paragraphs ?
Liability of the managing team regarding quality
Relevant ethical rules
Acceptance and continuance of engagements
Human resources
Performance of engagements
Monitoring of the quality system
6.1.4 Is there an internal quality control system ?
If yes, describe the system and the engagements concerned ?
6.2 Anti-money laundering
Does the firm know and share the standard on Anti-Money Laundering ?
Has it put in place the required procedures regarding :
- the appointment of a person in charge of internal control
- the appointment of a person in charge of relations with the relevant authorities
- the assessment of money laundering risks within the clients' entities
- the implementation of professional diligences and due care at the time of acceptance of the engagement
and during the engagement
- the conservation during the legal period of the documents relating to the identification of the beneficial
ownership
- the compliance with declaration requirements to the Financial Intelligence Unit

1

Among your clients have you politically exposed persons ?
Comments
6.3 Computer tool
6.3.1 Which computer software do you make use of?
General accounting
Computer assisted review
Payroll
Digitisation of files
Time spent monitoring (invoicing purpose)
Management of relationships with clients
Computer management of documents
Secretarial work
Others - Specify
6.3.2 Is your computer system within a network system ?
6.3.3 Do you make use of Internet with your clients ( If yes, please describe)
6.3.4

Describe the computer safeguarding procedure

Specify
Comments
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Preparatory questionnaire

6 - WORKING METHODS OF THE FIRM
6.4

Controller's comments

Client file
6.4.1

Describe how client files are organized (Permanent file and current file)

6.4.2 Are there formalized principles within the firm to prepare and use client files?
Comments, if any
6.4.3 Is there a client files preservation procedure ?
For which duration and where?

6.5 Delegation and supervision
6.5.1 Describe the procedures in place for delegation and technical planning :
6.5.2 Are the delegation and supervision procedures formalized within the firm ?
Comments, if any,
6.5.3

What are the means used to check staff work ( end-of-work questionnaire,…)?

6.5.4 Concerning the supervision of work, is it organized (materialization, internal quality review,…) ?

Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to the working methods ? (Yes or No)
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Preparatory questionnaire

A1 - OTHER PLACES OF PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE OF THE FIRM

Town-Postal Code

Address and telephone

Person in charge

Comments Controller

Total staff

Revenue

Number of secondary
offices

1
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Preparatory questionnaire

A2 - OTHER STRUCTURES OF PRACTICE OF THE CERTIFIED ACCOUNTANTS

Name and surname
of the certified
accountant

Name of the firm

Legal form

Address

Controller 's comments

Services provided *

* To be specified

1
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Preparatory questionnaire

A3 - CORPORATE POSITIONS OF THE FIRM'S CERTIFIED ACCOUNTANTS AND INTERESTS HELD

3.1 Corporate positions held in accounting firms in France and abroad

Client of the firm ?
(Yes or No)

3.2 Corporate positions held in other companies in France and Abroad

General information
Designation

Year of
taking of
interests

Name and address

Activity

Financial information
Name of the head of firm
Yes /
Capital
(specify whether he/she
No
is a certified accountant)

Proportionate
interest

Income
(excluding
taxes)

Remarks

Results

3.3 Interests in accounting structures

3.4 Interests in other companies

1

Controller's
comments
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Preparatory questionnaire

Controller's comments

A4 - PARTNERSHIPS AND NETWORK IN FRANCE AND ABROAD
4.1 Firm name and head office

4.2 Year of entry in the parnership, network or other :

4.3 Objectives and activities :

4.4 Number of participants

4.5 Nature of services obtained :

Compulsory

Education
Quality control
Assistance in engagements
Pooling of computer resources
Implementation of other resources
Others (to be specified)

Non Compulsory

In case of membership in several groups or networks, please attach an appendix

1
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organisational questionnaire

SUMMARY

Name of the firm
Controlled professional
Controller
Control number
Sent to the controlled professional on:
Transmitted to the controller on :
Email of the controlled professional

Professionals

Completed by the controller

Control
number

File
attached

Please enter the effective date of control :
1. Preparatory questionnaire completed by the controlled professional
P1 General information on the firm
P2 Firm's organization
P3 Firm's staff
P4 Skills maintenance
P5 Clients and engagements of the firm
P6 Working methods of the firm
A1 Other places of professional practice of the firm
A2 Other structures of practice of professional certified accountants within the firm
A3 Corporate positions of the firm's certified accountants and interests held
A4 Partnerships and network in France and abroad

1

2. Organisational questionnaire to be completed by the controller :
1 Understanding of the professional organisation
2 Independence
3 Skills
4 Acceptance and continuance of engagements
5 Quality of work
6 Professional secrecy
7 Report
8 Communication
9 Anti-money laundering
10 Oversight of quality control policies and procedures
3. Summary note : organisational control
4. Technical reviews by the controller
The review of client files is carried out within one single file (technical questionnaire), and this for each controlled professional
The controller has to review at least two clients' files per professional controlled, one of which is chosen according to the anti-money laundering criteria
5. Control report on review
Prior to printing the control report, select the type of report
Report without observation
Report with simple observation(s)
Report with observations and re-check at one year
6. Checklist of the file
Such list sums up the control items and enables you to check their completeness :

Checklist of the controller
Experts

Sworn statement

Controlled
professionals

Declaration on
independence

Number of client
files reviewed

?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?

?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?

?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?

?
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Number of Certified Accountants controlled

?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?

Number of Certified Accountants not controlled
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Control report

Type of control report
proposed

?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?

?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?

0

organisational questionnaire

ORGANISATIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Control key points

Quality Control

Date :
Control number:
Legislation /
Regulation
applicable

Means

Ref. to
preparatory
quest.

Findings
during the visit

Controller's remarks

UNDERSTANDING OF THE PROFESSIONAL ORGANISATION

1.

Visit of the premises to ensure wether :
- their extent is sufficient,
- their aspect is appropriate,
- there are restrictions of access.

Visit of the premises

Identify the milestones in the firm’s history
1.1 Ownership
Check that the capital composition complies with the ownership requirements
1.2 Voting rights
Check that the percentage of voting rights complies with the requirements
Check that the percentage of the capital held or of the voting rights of partners nonmembers of the professional institute does not jeopardize neither the professional
practice , nor the independence of partners, nor the compliance with professional and
ethical rules
1.3 Leadership position
Check that managers, presidents of the board of directors, presidents of SAS, members
of the directoire are members of the professional institutes, and members of the firm

1.4

Handbook of procedures
Is there a handbook of procedures in accordance with the requirements ?
Does the handbook include the requirements related to anti-money laundering ?

Handbook of
procedures

6.1
2.2

Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to the understanding of
the professional organisation ? (Yes or No)

?

1
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ORGANISATIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Control key points
2.

Quality Control

Date :
Control number:
Legislation /
Regulation
applicable

Means

Ref. to
preparatory
quest.

Findings
during the visit

Controller's remarks

INDEPENDENCE
2.1

2.2

2.3

Incompatible activities
Check that the professional accountant does not carry out a function incompatible with
professional practice.

A2

Check that the professional accountant does not perform accounting, bookkeeping or
auditing work in companies in which he holds significant interests.

A3

Relationships with clients
Check that the professional accountant has taken the necessary safeguarding measures,
in case of risks likely to impact his independence
Remuneration of work performed by the professional accountant
Check that the terms of remuneration for the work done and the payment of fees are
compatible with the independence rules.

2.4

Handbook of
procedures

Client
accounting,invoice files

Shareholdings in companies of any kind
Check that the holding of financial interests by an accountant or an accounting firm does
not impede the performance of their professional duties, and especially the independence
principle

A3

2.5
Déte Holding of corporate positions
Check that the holding of corporate positions does not impede the performance of their
professional duties, and especially the independence principle
2.6

5.2.1

A3

Independence of staff
Check the obtention at least once a year of a declaration of independence signed by the
employees

Personnel file

3.6

Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to the independence ?
(Yes or No)

?

1
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ORGANISATIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Control key points
3.

Quality Control

Date :
Control number:
Legislation /
Regulation
applicable

Means

Ref. to
preparatory
quest.

Findings
during the visit

Controller's remarks

COMPETENCY
3.1

Recruitment
Assess the adequacy of the level of staff compared to the workload of the firm
Has the firm formalized its needs for skills in relation with its engagements ?
Check that the junior staff education is sufficient to carry out the work they are endowed
with.

§ 29 NPMQ
Art. 148 décret
2012-432 du
30/03/2012

3.1.1
Education plan

3.2
3.1.1

What is the ratio of employed accountants per certified accountant?
3.2

Continuous education
Check that the number of hours devoted by the certified accountant to his own continuous
education, is sufficient.

4.1
Training plan
Attestation of presence

Check that the number of hours devoted to staff continuous education, is sufficient.
Check that there is in place a follow-up of training actions (availability of an education plan
).
3.3

4.1

Assessment - Promotion
Ascertain the existence of a periodic assessment of the staff

Assessment sheeds

Remunerations
Check that the level of remunerations is not blatantly incompatible with the quality
requirements of work (an abnormally low level usually reveals a problem of skills)

3.5

3.3

Handbook of
procedures

If there is a written procedure, check that assessments have actually been carried out
3.4

4.3 - 4,4

Labour contracts
(DSN)

3.4

Check whether technical documentation is actually available to staff (technical information
meetings, distribution of documentation) and especially the standards and ethical
framework

Review of internal
notes of technical
information

4.5

Check that documentation is available, updated and adapted to the needs of the firm's
activity

Visit of the library

4.5

When the firm uses its own resources (handbooks, guides, working plans …), assess
them through tests, taking into account guidelines and standards relating to engagements.

Handbook of
procedures

6.3

Failing that, check that provisions are made in order that partners and technical staff have
sufficient knowledge of guidelines and recommendatiosns, and standards relating to the
engagements or to doctrine and/or specific documentation.

Handbook of
procedures

CCN

Technical documentation and information

Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to the competency ?
(Yes or No)

1
?
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ORGANISATIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE

Means

Ref. to
preparatory
quest.

Check the existence of a risks analysis in order to assess the extent of diligence to
perform as part of anti-money laundering

Assessment of risks
(normal, low, high)

6.2

Check that the Beneficial Ownership identification procedure complies with requirements

Engagement letter
Permanent file,
Handbook of
procedures

6.2

Control key points

4.

Quality Control

Date :
Control number:
Legislation /
Regulation
applicable

Findings
during the visit

Controller's remarks

ACCEPTANCE AND CONTINUANCE OF ENGAGEMENTS
4.1

4.2

Identification of the client and beneficial ownership

Feasibility of the engagement
Ensure that the controlled professional is in a position to accept the engagement in view
of the code of ethics and of the standards of the profession, including :
Independence, Conflicts of interest, Competency, Quality of work, Integrity of the client
Check that the controlled professional has the appropriate means to perform the
engagement under good conditions.

4.3

6.2

Continuance of the engagement
Check the updating of the risks analysis in accordance with the anti-money laundering
requirements
Check on a regular basis that no new circumstances put into question the continuance of
the engagement

Assessement of risks

§ 26 à 28
NPMQ

Engagement letter
Permanent client file

In case of resignation, check that the certified accountant has taken into account the
professional, legal and regulatory requirements
4.4

Handbook of
procedures

Materialisation of procedures for the acceptance and the continuance of
engagements
Are the acceptance and continuance procedures for engagements materialized in the
files?

4.5

Relationship with Fellow Members
In case of the taking over of the file from a fellow member, check that the relevant
requirements are complied with.

4.6

Engagement letter
Check that the acceptance of an engagement gives rise to a letter of engagement signed
by the client
Check that the engagement letter includes the items required :
- Ordinal and social signatory
- Updating of the engagement letter

Client file

5.3

Art. 163 décret
2012-432 du
30/03/2012

Interviews, Review of a
letter to a fellow
professional

5.3.1
5.3.2

Art. 151 décret
2012-432 du
30/03/2012

Review of an
engagement letter

5.4

Interviews

2.3
5.4
5.4.2

Art. 151 décret
2012-432 du

Check that engagement letters are available for the former clients
Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to the acceptance and
continuance of engagements ? (Yes or No)

1

?
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ORGANISATIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Control key points
5.

QUALITY OF WORK
5.1

Professional diligences and due care
Assess the adequacy by level of the staff in relation to the workload of the firm

5.2

Work planning

Quality Control

Date :
Control number:
Legislation /
Regulation
applicable

Means

Ref. to
preparatory
quest.

Findings
during the visit

Controller's remarks

Art. 145 & 148
décret 2012-432
3.3

Check that a procedure is available for planning the engagements in the short (several
weeks ) and medium terms (breakdown by staff, client and certified accountant)

Work planning

6.4

Is the planning procedure formalized?
Assess wether planning ensures :
Work planning,
engagement letter

- compliance with tax deadlines
- a proper adequacy between the competency of staff and the tasks to be performed
5.3

Delegation and supervision

2.3

Check that :
- The acceptance or continuance of engagements, the signing of the engagement letter
are carried out according to policies and procedures provided for in application of legal
requirements
- The signing of reports is compliant with legal requirements
- The supervision of work is adequately performed within the firm

Working file

Art. 2
ordonnance du

5.5

Handbook of
procedures

Have rules for delegation and supervision been formalized ?

5.4

6.5
3.1.1

5.4 Expert Consultation
Check that an appropriate consultation procedure is in place for complex or controversial
issues

Consultation note

Check the reality of materialization of such consultations
5.5

Independent review
Check that an indepedent review is put in place for engagements that require it

5.6

Use of other professional work
Check that the certified accountant carries out a critical review of the work performed by
other professionnals when he makes reference to their work

5.7

§ 35 & suivants
NPMQ

1

§ 29 & suivants
NPMQ
Working file

2.5

Working file
Archives

6.4

Documentation of work
Check that the certified accountant makes use of working files and keep them during an
approporiate length of time in order to meet his needs or legal or regulatory requirements
Check that rules on conservation of documents related to anti-money laundering comply
with requirements

6.2

Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to quality of work ? (Yes
or No)

?
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ORGANISATIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Control key points

6.

PROFESSIONAL SECRECY AND DUTY OF CONFIDENTIALITY
6.1

Awareness of staff

Quality Control

Date :
Control number:
Legislation /
Regulation
applicable

Means

Findings
during the visit

Controller's remarks

Art. 21
ordonnance du
19/09/1945
Handbook of
procedures

Check that staff is aware of the requirements regarding professional secrecy and
confidentiality :
- Confidentiality of information contained in working files
- Sending of documents to third-parties
- Sending of faxes and mails
- Answer to questions raised by third-parties
6.2

Ref. to
preparatory
quest.

Interviews

Materialization
Inquire about the possible presence in labour contracts of provisions relating to duties of
professional secrecy and of confidentiality

Review of a labour
contract

3,5

Handbook of
procedures

Are rules regarding professional secrecy and duty of confidentiality formalized?
Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to professional secrecy
and duty of confidentiality ? (Yes or No)

?

1
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ORGANISATIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Control key points

7.

REPORT
Check that engagements give rise to the drawing up of a report (minutes, letter,
attestation, commentary note) in accordance with the engagement type

Quality Control

Date :
Control number:
Legislation /
Regulation
applicable

Means

Art. 2 de
l'Ordonnance du
§ 29, 32 et A32
NPMQ

Ref. to
preparatory
quest.

Findings
during the visit

5.5

Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to rules of reporting ?
(Yes or No)

8.

Controller's remarks

?

COMMUNICATION
2.6

Check that rules relating to communication are known and abided with in terms of:
behaviour, advertising, solicitation, ethics
Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to communication ?
(Yes or No)

9.

?

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING
Check that the requirements provided for by the standard on anti-money laundering and
terrorist financing are known, in terms of :

Handbook of
procedures

Duty of care, Documentation, Suspicious Activity Report to Financial Intelligence Unit,
Implementation of Internal Control procedures , Education

6.2

Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to anti-money
laundering ? (Yes or No)

10.

?

OVERSIGHT OF QUALITY CONTROL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

6.1

Check that oversight mechanisms of the Quality control system have been put in place
Interviews with the
person in charge of
quality

Check that weaknesses are subject to corrective actions
Check that the firm properly deals with complaints and allegations from clients, staff or
third parties
Have you exhaustively documented the questions relating to the oversight of
Quality control policies and procedures ? (Yes or No)

1

?
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controlled professional :

Date of control:

SUMMARY NOTE : ORGANISATIONAL CONTROL

control number:

Key points of control

Findings

Possible impact

Recommendations

Remarks of controlled
professional

The "finding" column should include an assessment or remarks on each point hereunder. In case of anomalies, the other three columns should be documented

1. UNDERSTANDING OF THE PROFESSIONAL ORGANISATION
1.1 - Ownership
1.2 - Voting rights
1.3 - Leadership position
1.4 - Handbook of procedures
2. INDEPENDENCE
2.1 - Incompatible activities
2.2 - Relationships with clients
2.3 - Remuneration of work
2.4 - Shareholdings in companies of any kind
2.5 - Holding of corporate positions
2.6 - Independence of staff
3. COMPETENCY
3.1 - Recruitment
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5

-

Compliance with ratio
Continuous education
Assessment - Promotion
Remunerations
documentation and technical information

1

4. ACCEPTANCE AND CONTINUANCE OF ENGAGEMENTS
4.1 - Identification of client and beneficial ownership
4.2 - Feasibility of the engagement
4.3 - Continuance of the engagement
4.4 - Materialisation of procedures of acceptance and continuance
4.5 - Relationship with fellow members
4.6 - Engagement letter
5.
5.1
5.2
5.3
5.4
5.5
5.6
5.7

QUALITY OF WORK
- Professional diligences and due care
- Work planning
- Delegation and supervision of work
- Expert consultation
- Independent review
- Use of other professional work
- Documentaiton of work

PROFESSIONAL SECRECY AND DUTY OF CONFIDENTIALITY
6.1 - Awareness of staff
6.2 - Materialisation
7. REPORT
- Availability of reports
- Adequacy between the report and the engagement letter
8. COMMUNICATION
- Compliance with ethical rules
9. ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING
- Compliance with legal requirements
- Documentation
- Procedures and internal control
- Continuing training and information
including : training of certified accountants
including : training of staff

10. OVERSIGHT OF QUALITY CONTROL POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES
- Availability of oversight mechanisms
- Implementation of corrective action
Name and signature of the managing partner
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1

A Guide for the implementation of Quality Control
for Services other than Audit
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CSOEC Technical questionnaire

Welcome into the questionnaires of technical review of quality control
You will find hereunder in this file the questionnaires :
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Presentation engagement
Non-assurance engagement : other services "Annual accounts"
Non-assurance engagement - other services social engagement
Non-assurance engagement - other services legal engagement
Limited review engagement
Contractual audit engagement
Summary note

Instructions for use of the technical questionnaires
You should review at least two clients' files per certified accountant, one of which is chosen according to
the anti-money laundering criteria.
For each file selected, you should review the file as a whole, including the part corresponding to the
related services (in particular social and legal)
The tabs can be duplicated, in case of a review of more than two files

Control number
Firm controlled
Professional accountant concerned
Phone number of the controlled professional

Technical control number
Date of organisational control
Controller
Phone number of controller

File 1
Identification of file
Nature of activity
Period closed on
Engagement
Preparation of annual accounts
Social engagement
Legal engagement
Other engagement (to be specified)
Number of hours
Fees
Name of auditors
Name of external consultants

Legal form
Number of employees
Financial period
Characteristic features of annual accounts of file 1 :
Revenues excluding taxes
Balance-sheet total
Other significant elements
Tax regime
Net result
Equity

File 2
Identification of file
Nature of activity

Legal form
Number of employees

Period closed on
Engagement
Preparation of annual accounts
Social engagement
Legal engagement
Other engagement (to be specified)
Number of hours
Fees
Name of auditors
Name of external consultants

Financial period
Characteristic features of annual accounts of file 2 :
Revenues excluding taxes
Balance-sheet total
Other significant elements
Tax regime
Net result
Equity

File 3 (if necessary)
Identification of file
Nature of activity
Period closed on
Engagement
Preparation of annual accounts
Social engagement
Legal engagement
Other engagement (to be specified)
Number of hours
Fees
Name of auditors
Name of external consultants

Legal form
Number of employees
Financial period
Characteristic features of annual accounts of file 3 :
Revenues excluding taxes
Balance-sheet total
Other significant elements
Tax regime
Net result
Equity
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1

CSOEC Technical questionnaire

Done by:
On:

Control number :
Controlled Professional :
Control Key points

PRESENTATION ENGAGEMENT

Legislation / regulation
applicable
ISA standards

other standards

Compliance
assessment

Controller's comments

Is there a client file ?
Acceptance of the engagement
Is the understanding of the client's activity prior to acceptance of the engagement
documented ?
Is the anti-money laundering standard complied with :
Determination of the level of risk ?
Identification of the client / beneficial ownership ?
In case of a taking over of a file, have rules between fellow members been complied with ?
Engagement letter
Has an engagement letter been drawn-up ?
Does it define the terms and conditions of the engagement ?
- Is it signed by the client and the certified accountant ?
- Date of signature ?
- Does it include general conditions signed by the client?
Procedures implemented
Understanding of the client's activity
Does the client file contain :
- Information on the entity ?
- Significant legal documents and multi-year contracts ?
Assessment of the accounting organisation
Does the client file contain the proper information about the accounting organisation ?
Assessment of the regularity of the accounting
In case of client's bookkeeping, does the client file contain the proper information about :
- the check of the availability and updating of the books and records ?
- the tests check on the quality of accounting records ?
Preparation of accounts
If the controlled professional is in charge of the bookkeeping :
Are there vouchers for the inventory entries in the file ?
In case of client's bookkeeping :
Are the test checks on vouchers underlying inventory entries formalised ?
Is the relevance check of the information provided in the appendix formalised?

1

Review of the consistency of the accounts
Is an analytical review formalised in the file?
Are significant variations or unexpected tendencies explained?
When inconsistencies remain, has the certified accountant drawn the consequences therof in
his findings?
Documentation of work
Do working papers enable to assess the relevance of the work done?
Are significant items on which the certified accountant bases his findings present in the
working file, including :
an appropirate working programme ?
work sheets related to preparation of accounts ?
formalisation of consistency checks ?
a general summary?
a copy of the final annual accounts ?
Are anti-money laundering checks on transactions documented in the client file?
Is supervision of the certified accountant evidenced in the client file?
Is the decision to continue the engagement formalised?
Report
Has an attestation been provided?
Have recommendations been delivered to the entity, in addition to such attestation ?
Are annual accounts attached to the attestation?
Is a signed copy of the attestation kept in the file ?
Content of the attestation
What is the conclusion expressed in the attestation (with or without observations) ?
Does the attestation include the items provided for by standards ?
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Name of the firm :
Control number :

File number :
Done by:

Controlled Professional:

On:

Control Key points

Legislation /
regulation applicable

Technical review

Non-assurance engagement : other
services "Annual accounts"
Compliance
assessment

Controller's comments

1. DOCUMENTATION OF WORK
Is there a client file ?

2. PERMANENT FILE
Does the permanent file include the following items :
2.1 The necessary items for signing the engagement letter and a copy of the
engagement letter
Does the file include a formalisation of the acceptance process (a note from the
certified accountant or an acceptance questionnaire signed by the certified
accountant) ?
2.1.1. Acceptance of the engagement
Does the acceptance process include the following questions?
2.1.1.1. Feasibility of the engagement
Has the certified accountant assessed whether he/she has :
- the skills required
- the resources available (staff)
- the means to perform the engagement
2.1.1.2. Independence
Is the engagement compatible with professional rules ?
Are the remuneration terms compliant with the regulations ?
2.1.1.3. Client's ethics

1

Has the certified accountant verified the client's integity and ethical behaviour ?
2.1.1.4. Compliance with anti-money laundering standard
Does the client file include :
- the identification of the client / beneficial ownership ?
- the assessment of the level of risk ?
2.1.1.5. Letter to the fellow member
In case of a taking over of a file, have rules between fellow members been
complied with ?
Is the letter obtained from the fellow member included in the file ?
2.1.2. Engagement letter
Before drawing up the engagement letter (or its equivalent), has the certified
accountant met with the client to understand his company organisation, in order
to define the appropriate type of engagement and propose a budget of fees ?
Is there an engagement letter ?
Does the engagement letter specify that :
with regard to the framework of the certified accountant 's engagements, the
engagement is part of the other "non-assurance" services at the end of which
the certified accountant does not express any opinion ?
Does the engagement letter include at least :
- the AML requirement regarding the identification of the client / beneficial
ownership ?
- the qualification of the engagement, as well as its description ?
- the reference to professional standards ?
- the obligations of each party ?
- the deadlines for the performance ?
the financial conditions ?
- the length of the engagement ?
- the indication that any significant change in the engagement will be subject to
an addendum ?
- the methods of renewal or of cessation as necessary ?
- the method for dealing with disputes ?

§ 6 et suivants norme
LABFT

When appropriate, is the engagement letter subject to a periodic updating ?
Is the engagement letter dated and signed by the client and the certified
accountant ?
Does the engagement letter comply with the actual engagement (no need to
write an addendum) ?
Are general conditions enclosed ?
Are they signed by the client and the certified accountant ?
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2.2. Description of the client company
Does the client file include information on the identity of the client company
management ?
- accounting, tax and social specifics ?
- activity specifics ?
- needs expressed by the client ?
2.3. Description of the accounting organisation
Does the client file include information on the accounting organisation of the
entity?
- accounting softwares
- accounting chart
- accounting methods
2.4. Significant legal documents and multi-year contracts
Does the client file include the main legal documents and contracts (articles of
incorporation, leases, loan agreements, leasing contracts, insurance contracts) ?

3. CURRENT FILE
3.1. organisation and preparation of the engagement
3.1.1. Assignment of the team to the engagement
Has the certified acccountant been appointed ?
Does the engagement team have the skills, aptitudes and experience necessary
to perform the engagement ?
3.1.2. Planning of the engagement
Does the client file include the planning of the engagement (dates and dedicated
staff) ?
Does the planning of work comply with the legal and regulatory provisions ?
Does the client file include an annual budget ?
Is it consistent with the engagement letter ?

1

3.1.3. Working plan
Does the client file include a working programme?
Does this plan include due diligence requirements regarding transactions carried
out by the client ?
3.2. Control procedures
Does the client file include :
- working papers ?
- information obtained from the client / third-parties ?
- documents drawn up by the certified accountant ?
Are the controls performed materialised in the client file ?
Have the anti-money laundering requirements been complied with ?
3.3. End of engagement work
3.3.1. Executive summary on the engagement
Has an executive summary of the major issues, including anti-money laundering
requirements, been prepared by the staff to the attention of the certified
accountant ?
3.3.2. Supervision and review
Is supervision materialised in the client file or in a separate document ?
Does the time spent by the certified accountant enable to ensure that an
appropriate supervision has been carried out ?
Does the engagement team have the competence relevant for the nature and
the importance of the file ?
Have all controls been performed in compliance with the working plan?
3.3.3. Final annual accounts
Have the final annual accounts been validated following the additional entries
resulting from the interview with the client ?
Does the file include such ultimate adjustments?
3.3.4. Continuance of the engagement
Does the client file include formalisation of the assessment approach for the
continuance of the engagement (questionnaire on continuance or note signed by
the certified accountant) ?
3.4. Report
Has a report been issued ?
Does it include :
- specific reference to the engagement ?
- the mention that the certified accountant has not performed a standardised
engagement of presentation, of limited review or of audit
- the annual accounts identification
Has the report been addressed to the client ?
Is the content of the report consistent with:
- the engagement letter ?
- the procedures materialised in the file ?
Does the report include the certified accountant's signature and the firm's
signature ?

4. PROFESSIONAL SECRECY
Has the file review highlighted items likely to jeopardise compliance with
professional secrecy ?
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Name of the firm :
Control number :

File number :
Done by:

Controlled Professional:

On:

Control Key points

1. Engagement letter

Legislation /
regulation
applicable

Technical review

Non-assurance engagement - other
services social engagement
Compliance
assessment

Controller's comments

art 151 décret 2012432 du 30 mars
2012

Is there a letter of social engagement, or a part called "social engagement" in the general letter of
engagement ?
Does it specify :
- the nature, objective and limits of the engagement?
- the nature of the work carried out ?
- the practical terms of collaboration ?
- the obligations of the client ?
- the financial conditions ?
- the deadlines ?
- the general conditions (or reference to the general conditions of the main engagement) ?
Is the social engagement letter dated and signed by the certified accountant and the client ?
Is it consistent with the current engagement (no need of an addendum)?
Are the general conditions signed?

2. Documentation of work

§ 45 à 47 NPMQ

Is there a "social" file?
Does this file include, either in paper or digital form :
- a copy of the social engagement letter or of the "social engagement" part of the general letter of
engagement ?
- the labour contracts of the existing salaried workers ?
- the documents coming from the client to provide the certified accountant with the payroll variables ?
- the periodic social declarations ?
- the particular procedures of teletransmission and telepayment ?
Is there a mention in the file concerning the availability and updating of the compulsory social registers and
documents ?

3. Planning of the engagement

§ 30 NPMQ

Does the client file include the planning of the engagement (dates and staff dedicated) ?
Does the planning of work comply with legal requirements ?

4.

Delegation and supervision

§ 32 NPMQ

Does the engagement team have the proper skills to perform the social engagement ?
Is the client file supervision materialised ?

5. Report
Has a report been communicated to the client (note of comments, mails, faxes, emails…) ?

art 2 de
l'Ordonnance
de
§ 29, 32 NPMQ
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File number :
Done by:

Name of the firm :
Control number:
Controlled Professional:

Technical review

Non-assurance engagement - other
services legal engagement

On:

Control Key points

Legislation /
regulation
applicable

Compliance
assessment

Controller's comments

1. Engagement letter
Is there a letter of legal engagement, or a part called "legal engagement" in the general letter of
engagement ?
Does it specify :
- the nature, objective and limits of the engagement?
- the nature of the work carried out ?
- the practical terms of collaboration ?
- the obligations of the client ?
- the financial conditions ?
- the deadlines ?
- the general conditions (or reference to the general conditions of the main engagement) ?
Is the legal engagement letter dated and signed by the certified accountant and the client ?
Is it consistent with the current engagement (no need of an addendum)?
Are the general conditions signed?

2.

Documentation of work

§ 6 et suivants
norme LABFT

§ 45 à 47 NPMQ

Is there a "legal" file ?
Does this file include, either in paper or digital form:
- a copy of the legal engagement letter or of the "legal engagement" part of the general letter of
engagement ?
- the articles of incorporation?
- the main contracts and other legal documents of the client company relating to the legal
engagement ?
- the documents obtained from the client or member?

3.

Planning of the engagement

1

§ 30 NPMQ

Does the client file include the planning of the engagement (dates and staff dedicated) ?
Does the planning of work comply with legal requirements ?

4.

Delegation and supervision

§ 32 NPMQ

Does the engagement team have the proper skills to perform the legal engagement ?
Is the client file supervision materialised ?

5.

Report

art 2 de
l'Ordonnance
de
§ 29, 32 NPMQ

Has a report been communicated to the client (note of comments, mails, faxes, emails…) ?
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CSOEC Technical questionnaire

File number :
Done by:
On:

Name of the firm :
Control number:
Controlled Professional:

Control Key points

Technical review

LIMITED REVIEW ENGAGEMENT

Legislation / regulation applicable
ISA standards

Compliance
assessment

Controller's comments

other standards

1. Documentation of work
Is there a client file ?

2. Permanent file
Does the permanent file include the following items :
2.1 The necessary items for signing the engagement letter and a copy of the engagement
letter
Does the file include a formalisation of the acceptance process (a note from the certified
accountant or an acceptance questionnaire signed by the certified accountant) ?
2.1.1. Acceptance of the engagement
Does the acceptance process include the following questions?
2.1.1.1. Feasibility of the engagement
Has the certified accountant assessed whether he/she has :
- the skills required
- the proper engagement level resources (staff)
- the means to perform the engagement
2.1.1.2. Independence
Is the engagement compatible with professional rules ?
Are the remuneration terms compliant with the regulations ?
2.1.1.3. Client's ethics
Has the certified accountant verified the client's integity and ethical behaviour ?
2.1.1.4. Compliance with anti-money laundering standard
Does the client file include :
- the identification of the client / beneficial ownership ?
- the assessment of the level of risk ?
2.1.1.5. Letter to the fellow member
In case of a taking over of a file, have rules between fellow members been complied with ?
Is the letter obtained from the fellow member included in the file ?
2.1.2. Engagement letter
Does the file include an engagement letter ?
Does the engagement letter comply with the standard ?
Does it include :
- the nature and the objective of the engagement, including the fact that it is not an audit ?
- the reference to the Code of ethics and standards applicable ?
- the fact that the engagement has not as an objective to detect errors, illegal acts or other
irregularities, for example frauds ?
- the fact that the work to be performed does not include assessment of the internal control
procedures of the client company and that as a consequence, its purpose is not to detect all the
anomalies that could be included in the accounts, including those resulting from frauds
committed within the company ?
- the nature of the information to be communicated by the client, who is responsible for the
completeness and the accuracy of the information provided to the certified accountant ?
- the accounting framework on the basis of which the accounts are preprared ?
- the form of the report issued at the end of the engagement ?
- the general conditions of the engagement agreement, as well as a table that summarize the
apportionment of tasks between the client and the certified accountant ?
Does the engagement also include?
- the identification requirements (anti-money laundering)
- the nature and the limits of the work to be performed
- the deadline for carrying out
- the financial conditions
- the duration of the engagement
- the indication that any significant change in the engagement will be subject to an addendum
- the methods of renewal or of breach of agreement, as necessary
- the method of settlement of disputes
Is the letter of engagement dated and signed by the client and by the certified accountant ?
Is the engagement letter consistent with the actual engagement (no addendum necessary) ?
Are the general conditions attached ?
Are they signed by the client and the certified accountant?
2.2. Description of the client company
Does the client file include information on the identity of the client company management ?
- accounting, tax and social specifics ?
- activity specifics ?
- needs expressed by the client ?
2.3. Description of the accounting organisation
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Does the client file include information on the accounting organisation of the entity?
- accounting softwares
- accounting chart
- accounting methods
2.4. Significant legal documents and multi-year contracts
Does the client file include the main legal documents and contracts (articles of incorporation,
leases, loan agreements, leasing contracts, insurance contracts) ?
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CSOEC Technical questionnaire

3. Current file
3.1. Organisation and preparation of the engagement
3.1.1. Assignment of the team to the engagement
Has the certified acccountant been appointed ?
Does the engagement team have the skills, aptitudes and experience necessary for performing
the engagement ?
3.1.2. Planning of the engagement
Does the client file include the planning of the engagement (dates and allocation of staff) ?
Does the planning of work comply with the legal and regulatory provisions ?
Does the client file include an annual budget ?
Is it consistent with the engagement letter ?
3.1.3. Materiality level
Does the file include the determination of the materiality level ?
Has the certified accountant applied the same principles as those followed in an audit of
financial statements ?
3.1.4. Working plan
Does the client file include a working programme?
Does this plan include due diligence requirements regarding transactions carried out by the
client ?
3.2. Control procedures
3.2.1. Collection of information
Does the certified accountant obtain information about :
- the findings drawn from the prior audit or limited review engagements, including the problems
that have possibly been identified ?
- the procedures applied or the changes having occurred relating to the recording of
transactions and the preparation of the summary documents ?
- the information having to be included in the notes to the accounts ?
- the particular items on which management of the client company has applied their judgment
?
3.2.2. Implementation of analytical procedures
Has the certified accountant performed analytical procedures aimed at identifying unusual
evolutions or correlations, including :
- comparison with the accounts of prior financial year or periods ?
-comparison with forecasted financial statements or with budget data ?
- analysis of the variances between the figures included in the accounts ?
- comparison with segment data ?

1

3.2.3. Reading of the minutes
Has the certified accountant reviewed the minutes of general meetings and boards of directors
in order to identify the discussions or decisions that may have an effect on the accounts ?
3.2.4. Interview of management
Has the certified accountant talked with management about the significant issues related to
each cycle concerning in particular :
- The completeness of the transactions recorded ?
- The possible occurring of accounting changes ?
- the changes having occurred in the activity(ies) of the client company ?
- The questions related to the application of procedures ?
- the obtention of a representation letter from the client if necessary ?
3.2.5. Additional procedures
Has the certified accountant implemented additional procedures, as soon as the procedures
priorly performed have shown that the accounts could include significant anomalies :
- substantive procedures ?
- collection of additional audit evidence ?
3.2.6. Controls over items or cycles?
Have controls been implemented over the following items or cycles :
cash - financing
suppliers - purchases and external charges
fixed assets
clients - sales and services
stocks
personnel
equity and current accounts
other accounts
Are the controls performed properly materialised in the working sheets?
Have the AML requirements been complied with ?
3.2.7. Subsequent events to year-end closure
Has the certified accountant asked the client about possible subsequent events that may have
an effect on the annual accounts before signing his report?
3.3. Year-end procedures
3.3.1. Overview of the engagement
Has a summary of the significant items been prepared by the staff to the attention of the
certified accountant ?
3.3.2. Supervision and review of work performed
Is the supervision by the certified accountant materialised in the working sheets or in a
separate document ?
Does the time spent by the certified accountant enable to ensure that an adequate supervision
has been carried out ?
Does the file appear to be free from any serious anomaly (without having to proceed with
special investigation)?
Do the controls performed comply with the working programme?
3.3.3. Final annual accounts and closing
Have the final annual accounts been validated following the additional entries resulting from
the interview with the client or member ?
Does the client file bear mention of these last adjustments ?
3.3.4. Continuance of the engagement
Is the decision to continue the engagement materialised?
Has it in particular taken into account the specific items related to anti-money laundering?
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CSOEC Technical questionnaire

3.4. Report
Has a report been issued ?
Is it consistent with the file as a whole ?
Does it comply with the standard applicable ?
Does the certified accountant issue in this report :
- a favourable opinion without observation?
- a favourable opinion with one or several observations ?
- an opinion with a reservation?
- an adverse opinion ?
- a denial of opinion
Does the report include the certified accountant's signature and the firm's signature ?
Is the report dated as of the date of the end of the engagement ?
Are annual accounts attached?

4. Professional secrecy
Has the file review highlighted items likely to jeopardise compliance with professional secrecy
?

1
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CSOEC Technical questionnaire

File number :
Done by:
On:

Name of the firm :
Control number :
Controlled Professional:

Control Key points

technical review

Contractual audit engagement

Legislation / regulation applicable
ISA standards

other standards

Compliance
assessment

Controller's comments

1. Documentation of work
Is there a client file?

2. Permanent file
Does the permanent file include the following items :
2.1 The necessary items for signing the engagement letter and a copy
of the engagement letter
Does the file include a formalisation of the acceptance process (a note
from the certified accountant or an acceptance questionnaire signed by
the certified accountant) ?
2.1.1. Acceptance of the engagement
Does the acceptance process include the following questions?
2.1.1.1. Feasibility of the engagement
Has the certified accountant assessed whether he/she has :
- the skills required
- the resources available (staff)
- the means to perform the engagement
2.1.1.2. Independence
Is the engagement compatible with professional rules ?
Are the remuneration terms compliant with the regulations ?
2.1.1.3. Client's ethics
Has the certified accountant verified the client's integity and ethical
behaviour ?
2.1.1.4. Compliance with anti-money laundering standard
Does the client file include :
- the identification of the client / beneficial ownership ?
- the assessment of the level of risk ?

1

2.1.1.5. Letter to the fellow member
In case of a taking over of a file, have rules between fellow members
been complied with ?
Is the letter obtained from the fellow member included in the file ?
2.1.2. Engagement letter
Does the file include an engagement letter?
Does the engagement letter comply with the standard ?
Does it include :
- the objective and the extent of the audit of financial statements ?
- the auditors's liabilities ?
- the management' s liabilities ?
- the identification of the accounting framework applicable to the
preparation of the financial statements ?
- the indication of the form and content of the reports to be issued by the
auditor, as well as an indication specifying that there may be
circumstances under which the form and content of a report may be
different ?
Does the engagement letter also include :
- the identification requirement (anti-money laundering) ?
- the type and limits of the procedures to be implemented ?
- the deadlines ?
- the financial conditions ?
- the length of the engagement
- the indication that any significant change in the engagement will be
subject to an addendum ?
- the methods of renewal or dismissal, as necessary ?
- the method of dealing with disputes ?
Is the engagement letter signed by the client and by the certified
professional ?
Is the engagement letter consistent with the actual engagement (no
addendum necessary) ?
Are the general conditions attached ?
Are they signed by the client and by the certified accountant ?
2.2. Understanding the entity and its environment
Does the client file contain :
- the identity of the client company (activity, legal, fiscal and social status,
organisation, management) ?
- the accounting, tax, social specific features ?
- the specifics of the sector ?
- the needs expressed by the client ?
2.3.Understanding the internal control
Does the file include information on :
- the understanding of the internal control relevant for the audit ?
- the control environment ?
- the process of risks assessment ?
- the information system, including the underlying operational processes,
relating to the preparation of the financial information ?
2.4. Significant legal documents and multi-year contracts
Does the client file include the main legal documents and contracts
(articles of incorporation, leases, loan agreements, insurance contracts) ?
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3. Current file
3.1. Orientation and planning ot the engagement

ISA 300

Has the general undertanding of the company been obtained (data sheet)
?
- Has it been updated ?
- Has a note defining the orientation of the engagement ?
- Is the audit approach consistent with the risk areas identified ?
- Has it taken into account the computer environment ?
- Has an budget been established and presented to the client ?
Specify the level of the engagement team
- Is the time spent on the file sufficient ?
- Do the resources assigned to the engagement team sufficient and
appropriate (competence and capabilities) ?
- Is the working program consistent with the plan of the engagement ?
- Does such working program include the due care requirements relating
to the transactions carried out by the client (anti-money laundering
standard) ?
3.1.1 - Risk areas
3.1.1.1 What are the significant items identified during the analytical
review of the income statement ?
Significant items noted by the controlled professional :
Other indications obtained from the fellow worker's file :
3.1.1.2 Particular events :
3.1.1.3 Risk areas :
Risk area as identifed by the
controlled professional

Items concerned

Risk area as checked by
the controller

Amount

% of balance-sheet

Intangible assets
Comments
Tangible assets/Investments
Comments
Financial assets
Comments

1

Stocks / Production
Comments
Clients / Sales
Comments
Cash / Financial accounts
Comments
Equity
Comments
Provisions for risks and charges
Comments
Debts
Comments
Suppliers/ Purchases
Commentaires
Payroll / company's debts
Comments
Tax liabilities
Comments
Others
Comments
3.1.2. Procedures implemented
Implementation of the internal control procedures review
Definition of a control program taking into account the internal control
findings
Audit evidence collection
Direct confirmations
Physical inventory Assistance
Checks on documents
Analytical procedures
3.1.3. RISKS AREAS - PROCEDURES
Check the adequacy between the risks identified and the procedures
implemented

Control Key points
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3.2.1. Controls by cycles
Have controls been implemented on the following cycles:
cash financing
suppliers - purchases and external charges
fixed assets
customers- sales and services
stocks
personnel
state of position
equity and current accounts
other accounts
notes

Legislation / regulation applicable
ISA standards

other standards

Compliance
assessment
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CSOEC Technical questionnaire

3.2.2. Other controls
Are the annual accounts presented according to the accounting principles
in force and are they consistent and compliant with accounting ?
Has the continuity of methods been checked?
Have the changes of method been adequately dealt with?
Is the control of unusual operating results materialised and appropriate?
- Is the analytical review appropriate?
- Have subsequent events received an appropriate treatment?
- If the professional accountant has relied on work carried out by a fellow
membrer, has such use been made in compliance with professional
rules?
Are the controls made well materialised on working sheets?
Have the due care requirements as regards actions in point of anti-money
laundering been complied with ?

ISA 560

3.3. End of engagement work
3.3.1. Overview of the engagement
Has a representation letter been obtained ?
Has a summary of the significant items been prepared by the staff to the
attention of the certified accountant ?

ISA 580

3.3.2. Supervision and review
Has supervision by the certified accountant been materialised in the
working sheets or in a separate document?
Does the time spent by the certified accountant enable to ensure that an
adequate supervision has been carried out?
Does the engagement team have the skills adapted to the nature and
significance of the file ?
Does the file appear free of any serious anomaly (without having to
proceed with special investigation) ?
Have all the controls been carried out in compliance with the working
programme ?
3.3.3. Continuous of the engagement
Has the decision to continue the engagement been materialised?
Has it taken into account the specific issues related to the anti-money
laundering provisions?
3.4. Report

1

ISA 700

Has a report been drawn up?
Is it consistent with the file as a whole?
Is is compliant with the ISA Standard?
Does the certified accountant issue in the report :
- Unqualified opinion ?
- Qualified opinion ?
- Denial of opinion ?
Signing of reports
Does the report include the signature of the certified accountant ?
Is the report dated as of the the date of end of work?
Are annual accounts attached?
Letter of comments :
Is the opinion delivered consistent with the contents of the letter of
comments ?

4.Professional secrecy
Has the review of the file highlighted items likely to jeopardise
compliance with professional secrecy ?
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CSOEC Technical questionnaire

TECHNICAL CONTROL

Name of the firm :
Control number :

Done by:

Controlled Professional:

On:

Control Key points

Findings

SUMMARY NOTE

Possible effects

Recommendations

Remarks of the controlled professional

1. Compliance with principles
- independence
- acceptance and continuance of engagements
- letter of engagement
- skills
- quality of work
- professional secrecy and duty of confidentiality

2. Performance of engagements
- planning of work
- use of the work of other professionals
- delegation and supervision
- documentation of work
- overview of engagements

3. Report
4. Standards
- presentation engagement
- limited review engagement
- other engagements

5. Anti-money laundering
- compliance with the requirements regarding the identification of the client
and beneficial ownership
- compliance with the requirements regarding the client transactions
- documentation
-internal control procedures : classification of clients by level of risk,…

Name and signature of the controlled professional

Name and signature of the controller
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APPENDIX 3: ACCA – Quality Checked description

1

A Guide for the implementation of Quality Control
for Services other than Audit
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Overview of ACCA Quality Checked
The aim of ACCA Quality Checked is to enhance the quality and efficiency of the services firms provides
to clients. This should help improve profitability while protecting firms' reputations and the ACCA brand.
The scheme promotes the adoption of practical quality control procedures that are generally considered
to be best practice by the accountancy profession.
ACCA Quality Checked is based on five principles which are supported by a set of standards. On a
more detailed level, quality controls have been developed to implement the standards.
To encourage firms to apply suitable quality control procedures ACCA issues an ACCA Quality Checked
mark and certificate. This is awarded to firms that demonstrate at an ACCA Quality Checked visit that
they adhere to the principles and standards by applying suitable quality control to all areas of their
business. By providing this service ACCA is not only recognising high standards, but also helping to
raise standards in the profession generally.
The benefits of applying best practice procedures
Best practice is based on the Fundamental Principles in ACCA's Code of Ethics and the five principles
which form the foundation of the ACCA Quality Checked scheme.
No matter how strong firms' internal controls are, a certain number of errors will always be made,
particularly during busy periods where staff are put under pressure to complete work more quickly.
However, the risk of errors occurring can be reduced by standardising systems and consistently using
internal control procedures to review work and thereby detect and correct errors before work is sent out.
By minimising the occurrence of errors firms will become more efficient, project a more professional
image to its clients, potentially improve profitability and client retention while minimising the risk of
litigation.
Having suitable quality control procedures in place is important to firms of all sizes. However,
procedures which are suitable for one firm may not be suitable for another. It will depend on the size,
structure and nature of the practice concerned. Because of the wide spectrum of appropriate procedures
that may be suitable for each individual firm, ACCA has taken a practical, risk based approach in
assessing whether a firm can demonstrate it has applied quality control procedures of a standard
compatible with the firm in question.
A quality assurance review will be carried out by an experienced ACCA compliance officer or practice
reviewer who will be a qualified accountant and who will have visited many similar firms and be able to
offer practical and effective advice tailored to the size and nature of the firm. It is a consultancy exercise
which will:

•
•
•
•

Help firms to review and appraise their own procedures
Highlight weaknesses in systems that may expose firms to risks they had not considered
Allow firms to benchmark their own processes against current good practice
Recommend practical procedures that could help firms retain clients and avoid complaints

Once awarded ACCA Quality Checked firms can use this to help market its services and grow the
practice.
Obtaining ACCA Quality Checked
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To obtain ACCA Quality Checked firms must demonstrate at an ACCA Quality Checked visit that they
have achieved the standard of excellence required. Firms must therefore demonstrate that they have
applied appropriate quality assurance procedures to each area of their businesses, from practice
management, filing and IT systems to accounts preparation, tax compliance work and other professional
services. In addition, firms subject to statutory monitoring in respect of audit, insolvency or investment
business, must have a satisfactory monitoring visit outcome before they can be awarded ACCA Quality
Checked.

Piazza de la Repubblica 59 | 00185 ROMA | secretariat@fcmweb.org

1

The visit
Who conducts a visit?
ACCA Quality Checked visits are conducted by ACCA compliance officers or practice reviewers and
take place alongside routine monitoring visits where possible. Compliance officers and practice
reviewers are qualified accountants who have previously worked in practice at either manager or partner
level. They visit numerous firms of all sizes in the course of their work and this gives them the
advantage of seeing how different firms tackle their quality control issues. They can call on this
extensive experience to advise and guide firms on practical controls and procedures.
What happens at a visit?
At an ACCA Quality Checked visit the firm's procedures are discussed, reviewed and assessed. The
visit has three stages although these will not always be treated as distinct sections. For example advice
may be given during the initial discussion instead of at, or in addition to, the closing discussion.
Discussion of procedures and systems
The visit will start with a fact finding discussion with the principals. This will cover all types of work
carried out, the client profile and any plans for the future. The purpose of this discussion is to allow the
compliance officer to tailor any advice on improving systems to suit each individual firm. For example
firms that are growing rapidly will need different controls from those that have a stable long standing
client base and firms with several partners and many employees will need different controls from sole
practices with only one or two employees.

1

The compliance officer will then ask the principals about the procedures they use when carrying out
work for clients and the way in which that work is controlled. This will cover all the areas of professional
work undertaken by the firm. Each firm will have different ways of doing things and compliance officers
do not expect every firm to adopt the same processes. The procedures a firm operates will very much
depend on the size, nature and structure of that firm and therefore advice will be tailored to suit each
case.
Review of records and client files
Once the compliance officer has found out how the firm operates the next stage of the visit is a review of
the firm's records. This will cover an inspection of the filing system, IT systems and planning boards,
diaries or other reminder systems as well as a review of a selection of client files. The purpose of this
review is to confirm that the systems and quality controls described by the principals in the initial
discussion work in practice.
Assessment of quality controls and recommendations
The final stage of the visit is an assessment of quality controls in operation . The compliance officer will
identify any weaknesses in the firm's systems and explain any risks that the firm faces as a result. He or
she will also recommend changes to procedures that the firm could introduce in order to minimise these
risks. This guidance will also include ways in which the firm could operate more efficiently to enhance
the service it provides to clients and improve its profitability. The compliance officer will also tell the firm
how far its quality control procedures meet best practice and what it needs to do in order to implement
best practice.
Where firms fall short of the standard set by the ACCA Quality Checked scheme they can take
advantage of the advice and guidance given by the compliance officer at, and following a visit in order to
achieve this standard. However, the purpose of the visit is to improve standards generally and firms who
already meet the standard for ACCA Quality Checked should still find that the compliance officer can
make useful recommendations. Firms are encouraged to raise their standards to the level required to be
awarded the ACCA Quality Checked mark and certificate and those who do not meet the standard will
be allowed up to one year after the visit to make improvements and reach the standard for this award.
Compliance with ACCA's Rule of Professional Conduct or Global Practising Regulations is covered
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during monitoring rather than ACCA Quality Checked visits. However, where breaches of these rules
are found during the course of an ACCA Quality Checked visit, appropriate action will be required to
rectify these breaches before a firm can be eligible for the ACCA Quality Checked mark and certificate.
What happens after a visit?
Report
Following an ACCA Quality Checked visit the compliance officer will issue a report to the firm. This will
summarise the weaknesses and risks identified during the visit and the recommendations made for
improvements. It will also show which improvements are key if the firm wants to obtain ACCA Quality
Checked.
Confirming improvements
Some firms will need to make only minor changes to their procedures in order to achieve the standards
for ACCA Quality Checked while others will have to make more wide ranging changes and implement
some new procedures. In all cases firms must demonstrate that improvements have been made before
ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded.
Where only minor changes are needed the firm may be able to confirm that it has made these changes
by letter and by sending any relevant documentation to the compliance officer. In other cases the
compliance officer will need to re-visit the firm to see the changes in operation. The report will detail
what can be confirmed by post and what will require a re-visit.
In all cases firms have up to one year from the date of the visit to implement recommended key
improvements and provide confirmation of their operation if it wants to be awarded ACCA Quality
Checked . This includes arranging a re-visit where one is required. At the re-visit the compliance officer
will normally look only at the operation of new procedures introduced to meet recommendations in the
visit report. It will therefore be much shorter than the original visit.
The ACCA Quality Checked mark and certificate
Once firms have achieved the standard they will qualify the mark and certificate, together with a
welcome pack that contains:

•

a guide to promoting your firm’s achievement to the local media

•

rules on maintaining the ACCA Quality Checked standard including details of what to do if
your circumstances change

•

a leaflet explaining to you what ACCA Quality Checked is

•

a number of leaflets which explain the scheme to your clients or prospective clients, these
have a space on the back for you to insert your firms name (further supplies of these can be
obtained on request)

•

a dispenser for the leaflets

Once firms have been awarded an ACCA Quality Checked mark and certificate, their quality assurance
procedures will be reviewed on a routine basis to confirm continued entitlement.
Mutual recognition with other accountancy bodies

86

Some firms have principals who are members of other professional accountancy bodies who also have
similar schemes to ACCA Quality Checked . To avoid these firms being burdened with general practice
quality assurance visits from more than one professional body ACCA has reciprocal agreements in
place with the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Scotland (ICAS). Firms that have recently been visited by the one
professional body will not be visited by another provided that they supply a copy of the report on the visit
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to the other body.
ACCA firms visited by ICAS or ICAEW will be exempt from an ACCA Quality Checked visit but will not
be eligible for the award of ACCA Quality Checked .
Quotes from firms that have received Quality assurance visits in the UK and Ireland
"Overall the review was practical and reasonable. Most of the issues raised were those of which we
were aware and had intended to address even without a visit. However, such a visit does crystallise
these matters and acts as a catalyst to ensure they are dealt with" 23/2/05
"These QA visits are very useful, particularly to small practices who are very much on their own and can
provide essential recommendations to partners and principles" 14/5/05
"The recent visit has focussed the practice on the areas that require improvement. It also provided us
with assurance that the majority of our work and procedures are of an acceptable standard" 8/6/05
"More useful than I thought it would be. Helpful to have an independent eye examine procedures and
systems" 15/6/05
"Very helpful and stressed tailoring solutions to particular practice size/circumstances, which I think is a
good approach" 10/8/05

The framework

1

The scheme is based on a set of principles which form the foundation on which the standards and
detailed quality controls are built.
The ACCA Quality Checked scheme does not specify any set procedures that must be followed. Firms
are free to develop whatever systems and procedures they find most useful to meet the standards in
section 2 and maintain appropriate quality controls as described in section 3. At an ACCA Quality
Checked visit, ACCA staff will recommend practical procedures that are tailored to the size and structure
of each individual firm. Firms can choose whether to implement any of the recommendations given.
For further details, select the relevant subject below.
1 Global quality assurance principles – rationale behind best practice standards providing principles for
firms to follow when developing systems and setting up quality controls.
2 Global quality assurance standards – high level standards of best practice area by area.
3 Quality controls – guidance on controls firms should have in place to meet best practice standards and
qualify for the award. Controls are split between key and recommended. ACCA Quality Checked mark is
awarded.
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1 Global quality assurance principles
1.1 Firms should be aware of and comply with all their statutory and regulatory obligations. This will
include compliance with ACCA's Rules of Professional Conduct and statutory obligations such as health
and safety and employment legislation. ACCA members should ensure that non-member partners and
staff conduct business in accordance with the fundamental principles in ACCA's Code of Ethics. Where
firms' work is subject to statutory monitoring firms will also need to have satisfied the monitoring
process.
1.2 Firms should clearly identify all clients' needs. This will include existing and new clients and will
involve re-assessing the services it provides to continuing clients on an ongoing basis as well as
establishing services required by new clients. It may also involve declining to act for a client for ethical
reasons or where the services required are beyond available resources.
1.3 Firms should maintain and document paper-based or electronic systems for ensuring timely and
accurate fulfilment of client requirements.
1.4 Firms should ensure partners and staff maintain up to date technical knowledge and skills and
should provide suitable training and development for staff and exercise appropriate supervision.
1.5 Firms should communicate effectively with clients, tax authorities and other statutory authorities,
ACCA and other regulators. This will include providing clients with sufficient, timely and accurate
information to meet their needs and informing clients of obligations or opportunities they may have been
unaware of. It will cover any advertising or promotion undertaken by firms and all information they are
required to supply to ACCA, tax or other statutory authorities or other regulators whether on their own or
on clients' behalf.
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2 Global quality assurance standards
2.1 Practice Management

•
•
•
•

Manage the overall workload to ensure work flows evenly throughout the year to make best
use of resources and minimise the risks that arise from working under unreasonable time
pressure.
Allocate staff to assignments based on their ability, experience and taking account of their
training needs.
Control work in progress to ensure client work is progressing properly in a timely manner and
clients are billed promptly on completion of work.
Apply reasonable credit control procedures to ensure outstanding debtor balances are
reviewed and action taken to follow up unpaid debts to aid efficient running of the practice.

2.2 Image and promotion

•
•

Maintain their premises to present a professional, businesslike image and provide a good
working environment for staff.
Ensure any advertising and promotion is professional and effective.

2.3 New client procedures

•
•

Assess the risk, including ethical considerations, and reward of any new appointment.
Ensure adequate resources are available to meet the client's needs.

1

2.4 Human resources

•
•
•

Ensure that suitable staff are recruited.
Provide appropriate training and supervision to ensure staff are adequately trained and
qualified to fulfil the tasks set for them and to help them realise their potential.
Ensure the integrity and the quality of their work is maintained when work is outsourced to
other firms or individual subcontractors

2.5 Correspondence, interview and telephone notes

•

Maintain an adequate record of all contact between firms and their clients or third parties, to
ensure vital information is not overlooked when preparing work for, or advising a client and to
avoid misunderstanding between firms and clients.

2.6 Office filing

•

Maintain a filing system, either paper or electronic, which ensures ease of access for document
retrieval and minimises the risk of loss of documentation.

2.7 Security of computerised data files

•

Maintain systems to allow easy access to information stored electronically and implement
controls to ensure the security and integrity of this data is safeguarded.

2.8 Personal tax

•

Implement systems to ensure clients' tax liabilities are established correctly and that clients are
advised of their liability and any relevant deadlines.
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•

Work should be controlled to ensure deadlines are met.

2.9 Corporate tax

•
•

Implement systems to ensure clients' tax liabilities are established correctly and that clients are
advised of their liability and any relevant deadlines.
Work should be controlled to ensure deadlines are met.

2.10 Accounts Preparation

•

Maintain systems to ensure accounts are produced in a timely and efficient manner and ensure
review procedures are in place to detect any errors in the accounts before they are issued.

2.11 Management accounts

•

Ensure users of the accounts are aware of the basis, assumption and terms under which they
have been prepared. Maintain systems to ensure accounts are produced in a timely and
efficient manner and ensure review procedures are in place to detect any errors in the
accounts before they are issued.

2.12 Payroll and related tax compliance work

•

Implement systems to ensure clients' payrolls are calculated correctly and that client and tax
deadlines are met.

2.13 VAT or sales tax compliance work

•

•
•

Implement systems to ensure that clients' sales tax, including value added tax, returns are
completed correctly, liabilities are correctly calculated, deadlines are met and interest and
penalties are avoided.

newsletters and on a website
If a website has been set up, ensure information is kept up to date and is in accordance with
ACCA's Rules of Professional Conduct. If this is an interactive site controls should be in
place to protect client confidentiality

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•
•
•
•
•

Keep the reception area tidy and ensure staff are adequately trained to give a good first
impression to clients
Keep any meeting rooms tidy and free from confidential files so they are suitable to conduct
client interviews
Keep principals' offices reasonably tidy, especially if used to see clients
Keep the office generally clean, tidy and well organised
Provide a good working environment for staff

3.3 New client procedures
Key quality controls - these must be adopted before ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded
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•
•

Have procedures in place to ensure professional clearance is obtained prior commencement
of work
Control acceptance of new clients to ensure procedures are followed in every case,
particularly in the following areas:
o Keep a record of how new client identities have been verified
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o

•

Establish that there is no conflict of interest or compromise to independence or
objectivity when accepting new appointments
o Confirm that adequate resources, expertise and relevant technical ability are
available to service prospective clients
o Both the firm and the client have confirmed in writing precisely what services are
required
o Obtain authority to act as the client's agent in dealing with the tax authorities
Control the issue of engagement letters to ensure a signed copy is held before the firm
commences work on the client affairs

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•

Issue fee protection insurance (FPI) engagement letters, if this is offered to clients under the
firm's umbrella cover, to ensure clients are aware that if the insurance does not cover them
for any reason they will be liable for any fees incurred.

3.4 Human resources
Key quality controls - these must be adopted before ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Always obtain references before employment is offered
Issue written contracts of employment to all staff (only key if this is law)
Allocate assignments to staff which are consistent with their capabilities and taking account
of their training and development needs
Supervise staff and carry out a review their work by an appropriately qualified person
Meet the eligibility criteria for ACCA Employer Accreditation at Approved level or above if
firm is training ACCA students or members working towards an ACCA practising certificate
Maintain the quality and technical ability by offering all staff adequate training, especially
those carrying out high risk assignments
Obtain written agreements with sub-contractors / consultants to include clear statement that
the individual should at all times operate within ACCA RPCs
Require subcontractors to maintain a level of competence in areas in which they carry out
work for the firm
Exercise an appropriate level of review over subcontracted work
Use a secure method of data transfer if work is outsourced to another firm at a separate
location
Inform clients if work is going to be outsourced to another firm

1

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•
•
•

Require all staff and subcontractors complete Fit and Proper declarations, confidentiality and
independence statements (key if carrying out audit work)
Monitor the overall performance and development of staff in the workplace (this is key for
firms holding or applying for ACCA Employer Accreditation Platinum level)
Set individual development plans and objectives for staff and reviews progress as part of the
firm's appraisal process

3.5 Correspondence, interview and telephone notes
Key quality controls - these must be adopted before ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded

•
•
•
•

Give clear instructions to staff on who is authorised to write letters to clients and/or the tax
authorities
Control outgoing correspondence including e-mail and faxes
Keep a written record of any relevant matters discussed with clients over the telephone or at
meetings
Have a policy to determine who is authorised to give advice to clients, and ensure staff
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•

understand what advice they can give and what they cannot
If a sole practice, ensure the above controls are adequately covered during the principal's
absence from the office, due to meetings, holidays, sickness or for any other reason

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not Key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•

Exercise control over incoming post

3.6 Office filing
Key quality controls - these must be adopted before ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded

•
•
•
•

Maintain a simple, systematic filing system that is understood by all members of staff
Have procedures in place to ensure documents are filed promptly
Have a suitable policy for the retention and destruction of files
Use a suitable method to dispose of confidential waste

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•
•
•
•
•

Securely fasten all documents to files (if all papers are loose this will become key)
Use a correspondence referencing system that clearly identifies the principal in charge and
the member of staff who wrote the letter
Keep appropriate files and separate for easy access to information where this may be
suitable to size of client, e.g. tax file, correspondence file, accounts preparation file and a
permanent file
Have a policy for files to be returned to system after use
Have a system for archiving files to ensure easy access and retrieval

3.7 Security of computerised data files
Key quality controls - these must be adopted before ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded

•
•
•
•
•

Put procedures in place to protect confidentiality and keep electronic data secure
Put in place a contingency plan in case of fire, theft or major system failure
Maintain regular backups of all data files off site and test ensure that data can be retrieved
Use appropriate protection to ensure the system is not infected by any computer viruses
Where 'hard copy' is not retained have a policy for computer file retention and file destruction

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•
•
•

Use the same file referencing system throughout the firm, clearly identifying the client and
the work held on that file and the date or version of the data
Control what software products are loaded on the firm's computers to prevent breach of
copyright
Comply with any requirements for registration or notification under data protection legislation
(this is key if required by law)

3.8 Personal tax (sole-traders, partnership and employees)
Key quality controls - these must be adopted before ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded
92

•
•
•

Terms of engagement are clearly defined in writing
Log and track the progress of all tax returns to ensure they meet the relevant deadlines
Identify tax disallowed items and prepare tax schedules as part of accounts preparation
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•

Inform the client of the tax liability, due dates and potential penalties in writing

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•
•
•
•
•

Log and track the progress of assessments and appeals where self assessment does not
apply
Have procedures in place to obtain necessary information from clients on a timely basis (this
can be standard letters, individual letters or by telephone with a file note of the date the client
was reminded)
Check information received to ensure it is complete and have a procedure in place to
request any missing or additional information required
Complete tax returns on a systematic basis (ensure completeness of information before work
commences)
Record the review of work

3.9 Corporate tax
Key quality controls - these must be adopted before ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded

•
•
•
•

Terms of engagement are clearly defined
Use a reminder system to ensure that any claims and elections are not overlooked and that
any deadlines are not missed
Identify tax disallowed items and prepare tax schedules as part of accounts preparation
Inform the client of the tax liability and due dates in writing

1

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•
•

Log and track the progress of assessments and appeals where self assessment does no
apply
Record the review of work

3.10 Accounts for sole traders, partnerships and audit exempt companies
Key quality controls - these must be adopted before ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Terms of engagement are clearly defined
Track and monitor 'jobs in' and work in progress adequately
Standardise accounts preparation working papers to clearly show how the accounts have
been constructed and the source of the information used
Have standard procedures to systematically check accounts for errors, omissions and
statutory disclosures
Use an appropriate format when preparing accounts, to include a balance sheet where
appropriate
Obtain approval of the accounts from the client
Put accounts finalisation control procedures in place to control the quality of accounts
prepared and to ensure they are reasonable from the point of view of the tax authorities

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•
•
•

Standardise the accounts preparation working papers to include an index, lead schedules
and ensure they have a structured layout
Secure all papers in accounts preparation files (if all papers are loose this will become key)
Record the review of work carried out by a principal or senior qualified member of staff

Piazza de la Repubblica 59 | 00185 ROMA | secretariat@fcmweb.org

93

3.11 Management accounts
Key quality controls - these must be adopted before ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded

•

Terms of engagement are clearly defined

The following controls are not key if all the firm does is complete bookkeeping entries at the client's
premises and the management accounts are an automatic by-product of this process and not made
available to third parties

•
•
•
•
•

Clearly identify estimates and assumptions for the user of the accounts
Have standard procedures to systematically check accounts for errors, omissions and
statutory disclosures
Obtain approval of the accounts in writing from the client when the accounts are being made
available to third parties
Restrict the use of management accounts to the purpose for which they were prepared, for
example, 'for internal use only'
Use a disclaimer stating that you have relied on information and explanations provided by
the client

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•
•
•

Plan and control work and use of standard working papers as with any accounts preparation
Record any analytical review work to help with advising clients
Record an effective review of work (where work is not carried out by principal)

3.12 Payroll and statutory deductions compliance work
Key quality controls - these must be adopted before ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded

•
•
•
•
•
•

Terms of engagement are clearly defined
Control the timing of work to ensure no payrolls are overlooked
Obtain authorisation in writing for any changes to salary rates and for starters and leavers to
the payroll
Keep evidence of any authority to operate / change tax codes issued by the tax authorities
Inform the client of any payments and submissions to the tax or other statutory authorities in
time to meet relevant deadlines
Principals should control payments made on behalf of clients whether this is a mandate to
sign cheques on the client's own bank account, authority to make payments through the
banks automated credit systems or where money is transacted through the firm's client
account

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•

Ensure staff involved in payroll work are adequately trained and keep up-to-date by
attending relevant courses or workshops

3.13 Sales tax or VAT compliance work
Key quality controls - these must be adopted before ACCA Quality Checked can be awarded
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•
•
•
•

Terms of engagement are clearly defined
Control work to ensure returns are completed in time to meet deadline and to ensure that
none are overlooked
Ensure working papers show a clear 'audit trail' identifying the source of the information used
Clearly identify any adjustments to the figures in the working papers
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•

Obtain specialist advice, where appropriate, in writing or record as a file note and kept with
permanent information on the client's file

Recommended best practice - these are regarded as best practice but are not key to the award of
ACCA Quality Checked

•
•

Use staff of with suitable level of experience and expertise and provide adequate training to
keep them up to date
Record the review of work by senior qualified accountant or principal (If junior or
inexperienced staff used this is a key point)

3.14 Specialist assignments
The type of assignments covered under this heading are probably some of the highest risk work firms
will engage in, e.g. forensic accounting, due diligence work, projections and forecasts, administering
estates of deceased persons, insolvency, liquidations and receiverships in countries where these are
not regulated work.
These assignments may provide information to assist either clients or third parties in decision making
activities. In addition, although often one off assignments, they require a high degree of expertise and
a sound knowledge of the client's affairs and the industry in which they work.
Firms should have quality controls in place to ensure these assignments are carried out in
accordance with the quality assurance principles.
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